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COMPANY PROFILE

Hydril engineers, manufactures and markets premium connections and pressure
control products for oil and gas drilling and production. Our products controi
extreme pressure and endure the harshest of drilling conditions. Hydril’s motto is
“Working Under Pressure Is Qur Business”.

Hydril Company has made energy, safety and protecting the environment its
business for 69 years. We have established our reputation on a commitment to
increasing the world’s energy potentia! through performance and technology that
protect industry personnel and natural resources.

Hydrit serves the drilling industry by providing superior products for difficult drilling
situations. Our engineering and technological achievements stand at the forefront of
the energy industry. The quality and dependability of our products and a dedication
to customer service distinguishes us from other industry participants.




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Years Ended December 31,
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(In thousands, except per share data) 2001 2000 1999

Total revenues $ 239,561 $ 180,022 $ 159,425

Operating income (loss) 42,330 21,418 (7,749)

Net income (foss) 25,619 15,614 (7,237)

Diluted income (loss) per share 1.13 0.76 (0.37)

Diluted average shares outstanding 22,575 20,557 19,379 =

Capital expenditures 29,525 13,5675 8,790 g

Working capital 130,728 116,911 81,378 =

Total assets 292,171 254,646 211,808 4

Long-term debt and capital leases, excluding e

current portion 60,000 60,286 73,039 =

Stockholders’ equity 160,185 131,729 76,446 g
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2 Hydril Company

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Fellow Stockholders:

The year 2001 was a good year for Hydril, and it was our best year since 1982.
| 'am pleased to report success in executing our strategic plan, and that

we not only met, but exceeded our performance goals for the year. Our
transition from a private to a public company was a major accomplishment
for our organization. 2001 marked our first complete fiscal year as a
publicly-held company.

Moreover, revenues for the year 2001 were up 33 percent to $239.6
million, operating income increased 98 percent to $42.3 million, and net
income advanced 64 percent to $25.6 million. We began 2001 with a
targeted earnings per share from operations of $1.05, or an 80 percent
increase. With the help of favorable industry fundamentals, Hydril's
employees maximized opportunities and completed the year with earnings
per share from operations of $1.15.

Demand in our U.S. premium connection business is driven by the
number of rigs drilling for targets deeper than 15,000 feet, and by the
number of deepwater rigs drilling in greater than 1,500 feet of water. In
2001, the average deep formation rig count was up 33 percent over 2000,
while the average deepwater rig count was up 30 percent. Internationally, we
look at the combined average land and offshore rig count, which was up 14
percent. Our results correlated favorably to the industry drivers which on
average were up 25 percent. Premium connection revenues increased
46 percent, to $138.9 million, and operating income was up 23 percent,
to $31.5 million.

The capital equipment portion of our pressure control business is driven
by rig upgrades and new-builds. During 2001, we received orders for four
offshore blowout prevention and control systems from the Sphere Supply, Inc.
unit of Santa Fe International Corporation (now GlobalSantaFe Corporation)
and for two deepwater blowout preventer control systems from Diamond
Offshore Drilling, Inc. These orders attest to the quality and dependability of
our products and affirm Hydril's leadership position in the industry.




Christopher T. Seaver
President and Chief Executive Officer

The walls of our lobby are lined with
patents attesting to our engineering
innovation. At Hydril we focus on
research and development to meet our

customers' drilting challenges.

For the year, our capital equipment revenues increased 11 percent to $42.9
million, due to progress made on projects booked earlier in 2001. The level
of offshore drilling activity heavily influences aftermarket sales in the pres-
sure control segment; therefore, the worldwide offshore rig count is the way
we track this business. The average worldwide offshore rig count for 2001
increased 14 percent compared to 2000; however, our aftermarket revenues
in 2001 increased 25 percent to $57.8 million. Our pressure control seg-
ment had operating income of $21.2 million, an increase of 148 percent.

The backlog of pressure control capital equipment increased $40.6
million to $55.8 million at year-end. This backliog will provide a stable base
of project business through the middle of 2003.

At the time of our initial public offering in September 2000 we raised
$40 million to fund our growth plan. In the premium connection segment we
expanded our plant capacity by 30 percent at a cost of approximately $21
million. Our pressure control segment strengthened its manufacturing
capability by adding new state-of-the-art machine tools, as well as, rebuilding
others. This upgrade program cost slightly in excess of $10 million. We
continue to invest in research and development of products and technologies,
most notably our dual gradient drilling technology, which we successfully
tested while drilling a section of a well in the Gulf of Mexico with
prototype equipment.

Demand for Hydril's products comes from the capital expenditures for oil
and gas drilling by exploration and production companies. These expenditures
are heavily influenced by the expected prices of oil and gas. We believe there
are sound mid- to long-term industry fundamentals which will result in
increased drilling, particularly the deep formation and deepwater drilling that
drives demand for the majority of Hydril's products.

Hydril is known for engineering excellence and innovation, and we
believe we are the technology leader in our markets. Our products meet the
formidable challenges found in ulira-deepwater and deep formation wells,
and we are taking steps to develop an even stronger slate of products.

2001 Annual Report
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We will continue to engineer “first-in-industry” technology and make the
highest quality, best performing, most technologically advanced products
designed for use in the most demanding drilling environments. In addition te
improving our existing core products, we plan to expand our offerings with
related products such as solid expandable tubular connections. We will con-
tinue to develop new products and drilling technology, like the dual gradient
drilling equipment mentioned earlier. During 2002, we plan to increase our
research and development spending by $3 million to ensure that Hydril main-
tains its position at the leading edge of technology in our industry.

As shareholders, we are indebted to our employees for their contribution
to the company’s success. Qur strategic plans cannot be executed and
business segments will not prosper without the many talented and hard
working people who are committed to Hydril’s goals.

Our aim is to continue to be profitable for our shareholders, customers
and employees by providing the highest quality and best performing products
that add value for our customers.

We are proud of Hydril’s rich heritage that is rooted in superior product per-
formance and are excited about future opportunities to grow our business.
Hydril's commitment to energy has never wavered throughout our 63-year

history and we are still proud to say, “Working Under Pressure is Our Business”.

Christopher T. Seaver

President and Chief Executive Officer
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Pressure Control Products

Our broad range of pres-
sure control equipment is
used in oil and gas
drilling, well completion,
and maintenance activities
by the world’s leading
energy companies.

Extracting oil and gas from
beneath the earth means
coping with extremes of
high-pressure and temper-
ature. Our special purpose
equipment meets the
diverse requirements of
drilling operations where
the highest quality and
integrity are essential.

Premium Connections

We created the first
premium connection in
the 1930s and we remain
the industry leader. Qur
premium connection
business is highly
leveraged to deep
formation drilling and
deepwater drilling.

The word premium is
derived from our propri-
etary engineering and
precision manufacturing
process used to
produce products with
superior performance
characteristics.

Annular Blowout Preventer
Annular blowout preventers are
high-pressure valves used to
seal a well and prevent

fluids and gases from escaping
by hydraulically closing a large
elastomer collar against itself or
around the drill pipe.

Wedge Thread™
Drill Pipe
Connection

Wedge Thread™drill
pipe connections
have torque capabili-
ty that surpass the
strength of the drill
pipe itself in most
applications and are
used to connect sec-
tions of the drill pipe
in extended-reach oil
and gas wells.




Double Ram

Blowout Preventer

Ram blowout preventers are
high-pressure valves used to
seal a well and prevent fluids
and gases from escaping by
hydraulically driving metal
rams against each other across
the top of the well.

Surface and
Intermediate
Casing Connection
Large diameter cas-
ing connections are
used near the surface
and at intermediate
depths to connect
sections of casing.

MUX Control System
Multiplex (MUX) control systems
provide fast response times for
operations such as riser discon-
nect, pipe shearing, pipe ram
and annular closing in deep and
ultra-deepwater operations.

Integral Metal Seal
Casing Connection
Integral metal seal
casing connections
have the reliability
and strength to be
used in deep, high-
pressure, high-temper-
ature environments.

Diverter

Diverters are safety devices
used to redirect or vent flows of
fluids and gases in a controtied
manner during offshore drilling.

Extreme Load
Casing Connection
Extreme load casing
connections are used
for horizontal and
extended-reach wells
where superior torque
and compression
strengths are
required.

T——,

Actuator / Drill Stem Valve
Remotely actuated drill stem
valves control well pressure
contained in the drill pipe to
prevent uncontrolled releases
of fluids and gases from the
well during the installation and
removal of drill pipe.

10

Integral Metal Seal
Tubing Connection
Integral metal seal
tubing connections
provide a reliable
seal and connect
sections of produc-
tion tubing used to
transport the oil and
gas from the reservoir
to the surface.

2001 Annual Report
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’ Pictured is an 18 3/4” - 15,000 psi compact double ram blowout

J preventer body undergoing final machining on one of Hydril’s
new horizontal boring mills. This body will be incorporated into a

1 subsea blowout preventer stack for GlobalSantaFe’s new
semisubmersible, Development Driller {.

- lechnology

“'e are the technology leader and have a proven track record for engineering
excellence. We provide the highest quality, best performing products in each

of our segments.

Hydril has the largest market share in the world for integral premium connections. In
addition, we have the largest U.S. threading capacity. We are actively engaged in developing
connections for the solid expandable tubular market. We have successfully tested metal-to-
metal seals for this application which we believe to be a critical feature in the development of
this enabling technology.

Two deepwater drilling depth records were set by Transocean Sedco Forex Inc. using our
blowout preventers and multiplex control system. Our reputation as a technology leader enabled
us to receive an order for four offshore drilling blowout prevention and control systems from
GlobalSantafe Corporation for approximately $37 million in 2001. This is the largest single
order ever received by our pressure control segment. Furthermore, this past year we also
received orders for two multiplex control systems from Diamond Offshore Drilling Inc. and have
captured nine of the last twelve orders awarded in the industry for this type of system.

One of the most exciting deepwater technological breakthroughs occurred in 2001 when a
joint industry project successfully drilied the world’s first dual gradient well. We were the
technology leader and equipment designer. Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Subsea MudLift
Drilling LLC, has a team pursuing commercialization of this technology.

2001 Annual Report 9




Using a Hydril blowout preven-

ter stack controlled by our
state-of-the-art multiplex con-
trol system, the Transocean
Sedco Forex Discoverer Spirit
achieved two world water-
depth records. The most
recent was achieved in
October 2001 by drilling a
well in 9,727 feet of water.

OUR DESIGN AND ENGINEERING OF
INNOVATIVE PRODUCTS CONTINUES
TO LEAD THE INDUSTRY INTO NEW
FRONTIERS OF HIGH-PRESSURE, HIGH-
TEMPERATURE SERVICE.

10 Hydril Company




WE PROVIDE E&P
COMPANIES THE TOOLS
THAT ENABLE THEM TO
REACH THEIR GEOLOGICAL
TARGETS IN A SAFE,
ENVIRONMENTALLY
RESPONSIBLE MANNER.

Our premium connections are
used in deep formation wells
where high-pressure and
temperature are encountered.
Customers rely on our
exacting manufacturing
standards and ability to
provide quality products that
deliver superior operating
characteristics in a timely and
cost-effective manner.

2001 Annual Report






inding and producing hydrocarbons is a capital-intensive and high-risk endeavor.

Hydril's products consistently perform in the harshest of environments. Our customers
turn to us because we provide solutions that cannot be found eisewhere, Utilizing exacting
engineering and manufacturing standards, we produce products recognized for their
technical superiority. -

Whether in deep formation wells or ultra-deepwater, our products perform. We invest in
people and technologies that enable the development of products that are unmatched in the
industry. Hydril's goal is to remain on the leading edge and we will do so by continuing our
commitment to research and development. Our 115 U.S. patents and foreign equivalents attest
to the spirit of innovation that thrives at Hydril. ‘

Excellence in product design and engineering is essential. Hydril also recognizes that
excelling in our manufacturing operations is critical to meeting our customers’ needs. As a result,
in 2001 we expanded the premium connection segment’s North American capacity by 30 percent
and significantly upgraded our pressure control segment’s infrastructure by installing new
state-of-the-art machine tools. These enhancements will enable Hydril to continue to meet the
performance expectations and delivery requirements of our customers,

 I——— |

- Performance

The unconventional requirements of ultra-deepwater drilling require
unconventional technology and product performance. Hydril has met
the challenges of offshore drilling with its multiplex control system.
Diamond Offshore Drilling Inc. ordered two Hydril MUX control
systems in 2001, underscoring industry confidence in the

| performance of our equipment.

2001 Annual Report 13




The manufacturing methods
we utilize ensure global inter-
changeability of our premium
connections.

By centralizing critical man-
ufacturing services such as
machine programming, tooling
inspection and gauge fabrica-
tion, our customers are
assured of product quality and

compatibility.

14  Hydril Company

WE HAVE THE RIGHT
PRODUCTS AND THE
RIGHT PEOPLE WHO
KNOW HOW TO DELIVER
THE RIGHT SOLUTIONS.




The oil, gas and water

contained in the geological

formations into which a well is

drilled can be under extremely
high pressure. Well control is a
top priority during drilling
operations. The job of the
blowout preventer is to keep
the rig personnel safe and
preserve the environment by
controlling pressure. BOPs are
used to close off unexpected
upward pressures caused by
the gases and fluids inside the
wellbore to prevent a

‘blowout”.

-

OUR PRODUCT LINES SERVE THE
INCREASINGLY COMPLEX DEMANDS
OF THE MOST SOPHISTICATED
PETROLEUM DRILLING.

15
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The annual report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements. These statements relate to future
events or our future financial performance, including our business strategy and product development plans, and
involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include the impact of oil and
gas prices and worldwide economic conditions on drilling activity and the demand for and pricing of Hydril’s
products and Hydril’s assumptions relating thereto. These factors may cause our company’s or our industry’s
actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from those expressed or
implied by the forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by
terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “anticipated,” “believes,”
“estimated,” “potential,” or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology.

These statements are only projections, based on anticipated industry activity. Although we believe that the
expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels
of activity, performance or achievements.

ITEM 1 — BUSINESS

Hydril Company is engaged worldwide in engineering, manufacturing and marketing premium connection
and pressure control products used for oil and gas drilling and production. Our premium connections are used in
drilling environments where extreme pressure, temperature, corrosion and mechanical stress are encountered, as
well as in environmentally sensitive drilling. These harsh drilling conditions are typical for deep-formation,
deepwater and horizontal wells. Our pressure control products are primarily safety devices that control and
contain fluid and gas pressure during drilling, completion and maintenance of oil and gas wells in the same
environments. We also provide aftermarket replacement parts, repair and field services for our installed base of
pressure control equipment. These products and services are required on a recurring basis because of the impact
on original equipment of the extreme conditions in which pressure control products are used.

Hydril Company was founded in 1933 and reincorporated under the laws of the state of Delaware in 1972.
In October 2000, we completed an initial public offering. Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National
Market under the symbol “HYDL”. .

Overview of Our Industry

Demand for oilfield products, such as premium connection and pressure control equipment, is cyclical in
nature and depends substantially on the condition of the oil and gas industry and our customers willingness to
invest capital on the exploration and development of oil and gas. The level of these capital expenditures is highly
sensitive to existing oil and gas prices as well as the oil and gas industry’s view of such prices in the future.
Increasing commodity prices generally result in increased oil and gas exploration and production, which translates
into greater demand for oilfield products and services. Conversely, falling commodity prices generally result in
reduced demand for oilfield products and services. Historically, changes in budgets and activicy levels by oil and
gas exploration and production companies have lagged significant movements in oil and gas prices.

Drilling activity was depressed in 1999 due to a reduction of capital expenditures by oil and gas operators in
response to a 1998 collapse in oil prices. Oil prices began to recover in the second quarter of 1999 primarily
because OPEC stabilized oil prices through voluntary production limits, which resulted in reduced oil inventories
worldwide. During 1999, oil prices continued their upward trend and stabilized early in 2000. Oil prices averaged
58% higher in 2000 compared to 1999. This upward trend during 1999 and 2000 led to an increase in drilling
activity and the use of our products.

Natural gas prices, which affect drilling activities primarily in North America, strengthened considerably
during the 1999 through 2000 period. Average natural gas prices rose 88% in 2000 compared to the average
prices in 1999, and peaked late in 2000 as a result of low levels of natural gas storage in the United States. In
response to these higher prices, exploration and production companies increased their drilling budgets for natural
gas in 2000 and 2001. These budget increases resulted in higher rig counts drilling for natural gas, primarily in
the Gulf of Mexico, which consume our products.




" During 2001, the price of natural gas began to fall due to the return of higher levels of natural gas storage
levels in the United States. Natural gas prices in the second half of 2001 averaged 53% lower than in the first half
of 2001. As a result, demand for our products in North America began to fall during the fourth quarter of 2001.
Additionally, in the second half of 2001, oil prices began to decline. Fourth quarter 2001 average oil prices were
35% below prices for the fourth quarter of 2000. This decline led to a reduction of drilling activity in the United
States and Canada and a resulting drop in demand for our products.

In recent years, the focus of drilling activity has been shifting towards the less-explored deeper geological
formations and deepwater locations which offer potentially prolific reserves. Operators have also increasingly relied
on advanced drilling technologies such as horizontal drilling to improve production and recovery rates of oil and
gas reservoirs. Demand for premium connection and pressure control products is favorably impacted by these
changing depth and drilling trends. We believe that the level of drilling activity in the harsh environments that
require these products will continue to grow as oil and gas operators increasingly target deeper geological
formations, shift their exploration offshore and apply horizontal drilling techniques.

Market for Premium Connections

Premium connections join sections of well casing, production tubing and drill pipe used in various stages of
~ drilling and production. The premium connection market is driven by the level of worldwide drilling activity, in
particular by the number of rigs drilling to a target depth greater than 15,000 feet and rigs drilling in water depths
greater than 1,500 feet. The majority of such wells have been drilled in North America. These depths require
substantially more premium connections than shallower wells. The following table shows the average rig count for
rigs drilling at target depths greater than 15,000 feet in the United States and the average deepwater (greater than
1,500 feet of water depth) rig count for the Gulf of Mexico for each of the years 1997 through 2001:

United States Average Rig Count Gulf Of Mexico Average Rig Count
Over 15,000 ft(1) Over 1,500 ft(2)

Number Number
Year of Rigs of Rigs
1997 o 138 e 17
1998 . 119 e 23
1999 .. 527 20
2000 ... 121 e 23
2001 .. 16l e 30

(1) Source: We calculated the average rig count using weekly data published by Smith International

(2) Source: We calculated the average rig count using monthly data provided by ODS-Petrodata Group




Internationally, the total rig count is a relevant indicator of the premium connections market. The following
table shows the average rig counts internationally for land and offshore combined for each of the years 1997
through 2001: '

International
Average Rig Count(1)

Number
Year ofRigs
1997 . e e 809
1998 .\ R 754
L1000 o 588
2000 L e 652
200 e 745

(1) Source: We calculated the average rig counts using monthly data published by Baker Hughes International.
The international rig count includes data for Europe, the Middle East, Africa, Latin America and Asia Pac1ﬁc,
and excludes data for Canada and the United States.

The number of horizontal wells, which require connections with enhanced mechanical characteristics drilled
both onshore and offshore around the world, also drives the market for premium connections.

Premium connections are generally required for drilling in environmentally sensitive areas. Oil and gas
companies operating in locations where environmental laws and regulations require a particularly high degree of
environmental safety, such as California, Alaska and Canada, might utilize premium connections due to their
superior sealing capability and reliability. As environmental awareness increases worldwide, and as governments
open for exploration new environmentally sensitive areas, we believe demand for premium connections in such
areas will likely continue to increase.

Market for Pressure Control Equipment -

Pressure control products include a broad spectrum of equipment and parts required for outfitting new
drilling rigs and upgrading and maintaining existing rigs.

Demand for pressure control capital equipment depends on the level of construction of new offshore drilling
rigs and the replacement and upgrading of equipment for existing offshore drilling rigs. The rig equipment market
experienced strong growth in the most recent offshore rig construction up cycle, which peaked in 1998, driven by
an upturn in drilling rig utilization. However, the level of new rig construction and demand for capital equipment
declined during the 1999 through 2001 time period, but demand for replacement parts and equipment has been
less volatile.

As a result of the high level of wear and tear during operation, pressure control equipment requires frequent
maintenance and repair (including replacement parts), and technical support services. Demand for these parts and
services are primarily affected by the level of worldwide offshore drilling activity. The following table shows the
average worldwide offshore rig count for each of the years 1997 through 2001:

Worldwide Offshore
Average Rig Count(1)

Number
Year- of Rigs
1007 e 377
1998 o e e 377
1000 e e 291
2000 .. 331
200 . e e P 378

(1) Source: We calculated the average rig count using weekly darta for the United States and Canada, and monthly
data for the international regions, as published by Baker Hughes International. The worldwide offshore rig count
includes data for Europe, the Middle East, Africa, Latin America, Asia Pacific, the United States and Canada.
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BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Our Premium Connection Business

We manufacture and market premium connections for casing, production tubing and drill pipe. We also
provide technical solutions and field support services to address specific customer needs in the design, selection
and maintenance of connections.

A conventional oil or gas well is drilled by attaching a drill bit to the end of a series of sections of drill pipe
joined by threaded connections. Threaded connections are similar to the grooves on a bolt and enable sections of
drill pipe to be screwed together. Once connected, the drill pipe may be up to several miles long, commonly
referred to as a drill string. The entire drill string must be removed from the well numerous times during the
drilling process to replace dull drill bits and accomplish other tasks. Removing the drill string requires the
disassembly and reassembly of the entire drill string. As a result, threaded connections for drill pipe must be
engineered to withstand numerous assemblies without compromising the integrity of the connections. When the
well reaches sufficient depth during drilling, the drill string is pulled out of the well and sections of larger diameter
pipe known as casing, also joined by threaded connections, are inserted into the well and cemented in place to
prevent the well from collapsing. Drilling is resumed until the next target depth is reached and the process is
repeated. Most wells use multiple concentric casing strings that fit inside one another. The casing diameter reduces
as depth increases. Once the well has been drilled to the desired depth and cased, production tubing is placed
inside the casing. The production tubing also consists of multiple sections of pipe that are joined with threaded
connections. In a completed well, oil and natural gas pass up through the production tubing to the top of the well.

Casing, production tubing, and drill pipe are the types of oilfield tubulars for which we produce our
premium connections. The term “premium” refers to a product produced by a precision manufacturing process
with performance characteristics superior to those of a standard industry connection. Premium connections can
withstand extreme conditions encountered in deepwater offshore wells and deep gas wells, as well as in horizontal
well drilling. They also provide pressure tight, highly reliable sealing necessary for environmentally sensitive
drilling. The technical complexity of these premium connections requires a high degree of accuracy during
manufacturing and substantially more machining and inspection time than standard connections.

We utilize custom-designed, computer controlled machines in our premium connection manufacturing
facilities worldwide. All of our machine programs are created and maintained on a central system in our
technology center in Houston, Texas and transmitted to each of our nine premium connection manufacturing
locations worldwide. As a result, all Hydril connections of a particular type, regardless of manufacturing location,
are substantially identical, ensuring interchangeability.

To meet customer needs, we provide a full line of premium connection products and accessories, including
connections for pipe of nonstandard size or weight. Qur various premium connection products exhibit various
high performance characteristics, such as:

° Tension resistance. Qur premium integral thread designs have high tension strength, which supports the
weight of numerous sections of pipe strung together in deep wells.

° Torque capability. Our premium thread connection, in particular our proprietary Wedge Thread™
connection, is designed to have torque capability that approaches pipe body strength in casing applications
and surpasses it in most drill pipe and tubing applications. This design prevents connection damage due to
overtorque, facilitates easier assembly and disassembly and reduces wear and tear from recurring service to

the pipe.

o Compression and bending flexibility. Our premium threads are designed to permit greater compression
and bending of pipe strings than standard connections, which is particularly important in horizontal and
extended-reach wells.




° Clearance. Our integral connections are machined directly onto the pipe, forming a smooth connection
with little or no increase in diameter of the pipe. Coupled connections, on the other hand, use a bulkier
third pipe, or coupling, to make a connection, resulting in less clearance inside the well. This integral
quality is particularly important in deep drilling where well diameters become increasingly narrow because
multiple strings of casing, production tubing, or drill pipe are utilized in one well.

° Pressure tight sealing. Our metal-to-metal pressure tight sealing is designed to prevent both gas and fluid
leakage, a critical factor in the case of extreme pressure and environmentally sensitive drilling.

o Corrosion resistance. Our unique manufacturing processes and designs reduce the propensity for galling,
especially when applied to corrosion resistant materials, and extend the useful life of the connections and
drill string. Our corrosion barrier ring, when used on plastic coated tubing connections, provides the
entire tubing string with continuous internal protection from corrosive well bore fluids and also extends
the useful life of the connections and tubing string.

o Uniformity and compatibility. Our connections are manufactured worldwide with the same design, high
tolerance specifications, and centrally manufactured tools and gauges, which enhances product uniformity
and compatibility.

We offer our customers technical services related to casing and tubing string design. Computer well design
software is utilized in the design and specification of the tubulars and the thread connections. In addition, we offer
highly-trained field service technicians to assist our customers worldwide. We have 26 licensed repair facilities
worldwide to support our premium connection business. Additionally, during 2000 and 2001, we completed a
50% capacity expansion of our premium connection manufacturing facility in Nisku, Canada and increased

capacity in the United States by 30%.

Our Pressure Control Business

We provide a broad range of pressure control equipment used in oil and gas drilling and well completion and
maintenance. Our products regulate formation and drilling fluid pressure during normal operations and prevent
well blowouts when the pressure of formation fluids and gases reaches critical levels.

The oil, gas and water contained in the geological formations into which a .well is drilled can be under
extremely high pressure. This pressure increases with greater water and drilling depth. When unanticipated
formation pressure is encountered, the pressure must be controlled to prevent an uncontrolled release of the fluids
and gases from the well, known as a “blowout.” A blowout can have catastrophic consequences, as the oil and
natural gas may ignite or the equipment and tubulars in the well may be suddenly propelled out of the well,
potentially resulting in injury or death of personnel, destruction of drilling equipment or environmental damage.
Blowouts can cause the loss of a well and significant downtime and additional expense. During drilling and
maintenance operations, it is therefore essential to regulate the pressure, and to provide for mechanical safeguards
to minimize the effects.

Our pressure control products include blowout preventers, diverters, subsea control systems, drill stem valves,
production chokes, pulsation dampeners and a variety of specialized elastomer products. We also provide
integrated subsea control systems, which typically include a series of blowout preventers stacked on top of one
another, along with other types of valves, and diverters. In addition, we provide replacement parts, repair and field
services to maintain our installed base of products.




Pressure Control Products

Blowout preventers. The key component of a pressure control system is a high-pressure valve located at the
top of the well called a blowout preventer. When activated, blowout preventers seal the well and prevent fluids and
gases from escaping. Blowout preventers are safety devices and are activated only if other techniques for
controlling pressure in the well are inadequate.

We manufacture two types of blowout preventers:

° Annular blowout preventers, which we invented more than 65 years ago, seal the well by hydraulically
closing a large rubber collar around the drill pipe or against itself if nothing is in the well.

© Ram blowout preventers seal the well by hydraulically driving metal rams against each other across the top
of the well; our ram blowourt preventers feature a new compact version that is designed for both rig
upgrades and new builds where space is limited. '

Diverters.  Diverters are safety devices used to redirect or vent the uncontrolled flow of formation fluids and
gases in a controlled manner during offshore drilling operations. A diverter is used during drilling when-there is a
danger of penetrating pressurized gas zones. Our diverters incorporate a patented integral vent design that reduces
the need for peripheral devices normally required for the use of diverters.

Dril] Stem Valves. Manually operated drill stem valves are placed in the drill string to control well pressure
in order to prevent blowouts and drilling fluid spillage during the installation and removal of drilling pipe. Our
drill stem valves incorporate automatic pressure balancing, which we were the first to develop, that minimizes the
torque required to operate them under pressure.

Pulsation Dampeners. Pulsation dampeners counterbalance the pulsing of pressure fluids through pipelines
that cause vibrations which may damage pipework and valves. In addition to oilfield applications, our pulsation
dampeners are used in airport refueling systems and chemical refinery and processing plants. Our pulsation
dampeners have a field replaceable bottom plate, which we were the first to develop, that reduces the number of
costly shop repaits.

Production Chokes. Production chokes are used to regulate the flow of oil, gas and other formation fluids
from producing wells with high pressures, high flow rates and corrosive fluids. Our production chokes use a
proprietary nozzle configuration that reduces internal erosion from produced sand and debris associated with
many oil and gas wells.

Elastomers.  Our line of rubber products includes parts used in annular and ram blowout preventers,
pulsation dampeners and other equipment. We specialize in bonding rubber to metal and offer a wide variety of
elastomer products in a full range of sizes, pressure ratings and elastomer types.

Integrated Systems. Our subsea systems integrate blowout preventers and other pressure control products
with control systems, usually for use in deep, high-pressure wells drilled offshore. Our control systems, also known
as multiplex or MUX systems, use advanced software, micro-electronics and materials technology and are capable
of operating in water depths up to 10,000 feet. These MUX systems can be sold either as part of our integrated
system or sold separately to integrate with the customer’s existing blowout prevention equipment.

Aftermarket Products and Services

Our aftermarket business is supported by our growing installed base of pressure control products. Because
our products are subjected to harsh drilling conditions, they frequently require repair and maintenance services,
which include replacement parts for those consumed during the drilling operation. We manufacture metal
replacement parts, including ram blocks, pistons, cylinders, seal seats and valves. Elastomer replacement parts
manufactured and sold include packing units for ram and annular blowout preventers and seal kits. We also have a
staff of field service personnel who assist customers on site in the proper installation and use of our products.
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We provide aftermarket services at our 6 domestic and 10 international locations, and through 20 other
authorized repair facilities.

Our Emphasis on Research and Development

We emphasize both the development of new products and the continuous redesign and improvement of our
existing products. We consider ourselves to be a leader in the development of new technology and equipment
designed to enhance the productivity and safety of the drilling and production process in harsh drilling environ-
ments. Our future ability to develop new products depends on our ability to design and commercially produce
products that meet the needs of our customers, successfully market new products, and obtain and maintain patent
protection.,

Our current research and development efforts are primarily focused on improvements in threaded connec-
tions, enhancements to our blowout prevention equipment, and products for use in conjunction with subsea
mudlift drilling. As of December 31, 2001, we employed 41 persons on our engineering and design staffs,
including mechanical, electrical and software engineers, who were principally engaged in product development
and engineering research and development.

We believe that, in addition to the technical competence and creativity of our employees, the success of our
business depends on intellectual property protection. As part of our ongoing research, developmenc and manufac-
turing activities, we have a policy of seeking patents, when appropriate, on inventions concerning new equipment
and product improvements. We hold numerous United States and international patents and have numerous
patent applications pending. As we redesign and improve existing products, we are often able to obtain extensions
of patent lives beyond their original duration. In addition, our trademarks are registered in the United States and
various foreign countries. Qur competitors may be able to independently develop technology that is similar to
ours without infringing on our patents, and we may be unable to successfully protect our intellectual property.

Although in the aggregate our patents and trademarks are important to the manufacturing and marketing of
many of our products, we do not consider any single patent or trademark or group of patents or trademarks to be
material to our business as a whole. We also rely on trade secret protection for our confidential and proprietary
information. We routinely enter into confidentiality agreements with our employees and suppliers. There can be
no assurance, however, that others will not independently obtain similar information or otherwise gain access to
our intellectual property.

Subsea Mudlift Drilling. In October 2001, the subsea mudlift drilling project successfully completed its
final phase by drilling a test well in the Gulf of Mexico. This joint industry project was formed in 1996 and
included seven participating companies: BP, ChevronTexaco, Conoco, Diamond Offshore, GlobalSantaFe,
Schlumberger, and Hydril. Conoco was the project leader and we were the technical leader, designer and
equipment manufacturer for this joint industry project. The project has developed a system of equipment and
drilling procedures which we believe will facilitate the exploration and development of oil and gas reserves in
certain geologic formations found in ultra-deep water in excess of 5,000 feet. Available floating rigs and
conventional drilling equipment cannot efficiently tap the potentially prolific reservoirs found in ultra-deep
waters. A potential solution to this problem is to have critical components of the drilling mud recirculation system
reside on the sea floor and pump the drilling mud back to the surface from the sea floor. Subsea mudlift drilling
reduces the number of casing strings needed, increases well diameter and production rates, and facilitates more
demanding completions such as horizontal wells. Additionally, subsea mudlift drilling enables better control of
well pressure, resulting in fewer pressure surges and fewer problems with the circulation of drilling mud. The joint
industry project team has completed its work and Hydril is now in the process of refining the design of the
equipment and pursuing commercialization of this technology. We have exclusive production rights to the
technology for this application for the life of the intellectual property. We contributed approximately $2.0 million
of the $49.0 million expended for the joint industry project. Hydril will be solely responsible for its future
expenditures in connection with its efforts to commercialize the equipment. There are other groups of companies
in our industry that are also developing competing technologies for ultra-deepwater drilling.
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Advanced Composite Tubing. At the end of 1999, we introduced an advanced composite tubing product as a
cost-effective alternative to steel pipe used in flowlines. Our advanced composite tubing is lightweight, flexible,
resistant to corrosion and fatigue, and can be produced in spoolable lengths up to several thousand feet. Because it
can be produced in such extensive lengths, advanced composite tubing reduces the number of connections needed
and is therefore easier to install and is less expensive than other alternatives. Advanced composite tubing is being
marketed for use in transporting oil and gas from the wellhead to storage facilities. We plan to make additional
diameter sizes and pressure ratings available within this product line and are currently seeking other commercial
applications for this product. During 2000, we began the initial commercial production and shipments of
advanced composite tubing. Companies with greater financial and marketing resources than us have already
developed and are selling proprietary tubing similar to our advanced composite tubing. During 2001, we were in
the process of making certain refinements to the products and developing marketing strategies.

Our Customers and Distribution

The end-users for our products are primarily major and independent, domestic and international oil and gas
companies, as well as drilling contractors. During 2001, we sold products and services to approximately 1,200
customers, none of which accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated revenues.

There has been substantial consolidation in the last few years among both oil and gas operators and drilling
contractors, and additional consolidation is probable. This consolidation results in fewer end-users for our
products. In addition, merger activity among both major and independent oil and gas companies also affects
exploration, development and production activity, as only the more promising exploration and development
projects from each merged entity are likely to be pursued. The loss of end-users or a reduction in exploration and
development budgets as a result of industry consolidation or other reasons could adversely affect demand for our
products and services and reduce our revenues.

Premium Connection Products. In the United States and Canada, we sell our premium connection products
primarily to steel pipe distributors who purchase the tubulars from steel mills and contract with us to apply the
premium connection to the tubular goods. Due to the use of distributors, we do not own the pipe we thread and
do not maintain an inventory of threaded or unthreaded tubulars. However, we market our premium connection
products to the end-users, primarily oil and gas operators, because it is the end-users who request their distributors
to have our premium connection applied to the pipe.

In 2001, our eight distributors accounted for 71% of our premium connection sales in the United States and
Canada. In the United States, there has been significant consolidation of tubular distributors, resulting in fewer
distribution alternatives for our products. If methods of distribution change, many of our competitors may be
better positioned to take advantage of those changes than we are.

Outside of the United States and Canada, we primarily sell our premium connections directly to oil and gas
operators. In these markets, we thread tubulars owned by customers, as well as purchase tubulars for threading and
resale. Our premium connection products are sold for use in more than 50 countries by our United States
customers operating abroad and by international customers.

In 2001, our two largest premium connection customers worldwide (both being distributors), each ac-
counted for 13% of segment sales. Additionally, in 2001 our ten largest premium connection customers
accounted for 63% of total segment sales.

Our premium connection sales staff is managed from Houston, Texas and is located in 19 offices in the
United States, Canada, Indonesia, Singapore, Mexico, Nigeria, Eastern Europe, Venezuela, and the United
Kingdom. We use manufacturer representatives in 43 countries worldwide.

Pressure Control Products.  Pressure control products are sold both domestically and internationally primarily
to drilling contractors, although we market some of our pressure control products to operators. Certain lines of
our pressure control equipment are also sold to rig manufacturers and integrators of equipment. Aftermarket
replacement parts, repair and field services are provided to both drilling contractors and companies that rent
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pressure control equipment. In 2001, our two largest pressure control customers accounted for 13% and 12% of
segment sales. Our ten largest customers in our pressure control segment in 2001 accounted for 56% of segment
sales.

We market our pressure control products through our direct sales force, distributors and authorized repre-
sentatives. Our pressure control products are sold for use in more than 50 countries. Our pressure control sales
staff is managed from Houston and is located in 17 offices in the United States, Canada, Mexico, Nigeria,
Singapore the United Kingdom and Venezuela. We use manufacturer representatives in 43 countries worldwide.

Cur Competitors

Our products are sold in highly competitive markets. Many of our major competitors are diversified
multinational companies, and are larger and have substantially greater financial resources, larger operating staffs
and greater budgets for marketing and research and development than us.

Premium Connection Products. In the premium connection market, domestically we compete primarily with
the Adlas Bradford product line of the Engineered Connections segment of Grant Prideco and to a lesser extent
with the Hunting Interlock product line of Hunting PLC, the VAM product line joint venture of Vallourec &
Mannesmann and Sumitomo Metals and steel mills and numerous other independent threaders. Internationally,
we also compete with some of our domestic competitors and with Tenaris, a marketing group which includes
Dalmine, Siderca, NKKTubes, TAVSA and TAMSA steel mills, which is licensed to produce and sell the Atlas
_Bradford product line internationally. In addition, we compete internationally with Vallourec & Mannesmann,
Sumitomo Metals and Kawasaki Steel, each of which is vertically integrated through the ownership of steel mills.
Integrated steel mills can apply threaded connections to tubulars they produce, which gives these competitors
supply and pricing advantages over companies such as ours, which apply threaded connections to tubulars
produced by others. Other steel producers who do not currently manufacture premium connections may begin
doing so in the future. If domestic or other foreign steel mills begin providing premium threaded tubular goods
directly to distributors or end-users, they would have a competitive advantage over us.

We believe we are one of the largest providers of premium connections to the oil and gas industry both in the
United States and worldwide. The principal competitive factors in the premium connections market are product
design and engineering, product quality and reliability, price, product uniformity and compatibility, and the
ability to provide timely field service and repair.

High levels of imports of tubulars would reduce the volume sold by domestic producers and tend to reduce
selling prices, both of which could have an adverse impact on our business. Moreover, foreign producers of
premium connections sometimes sell their products in the United States market at prices below cost (which is
referred to as dumping). If not constrained by antidumping duty orders and counterveiling duty orders, which
impose duties on imported tubulars to offset dumping and subsidies provided by foreign governments, this
practice allows foreign producers to capture sales and market share from domestic producers. Duty orders
normally reduce the leve] of imported goods and result in higher prices in the United States market. Duty orders
may be modified or revoked as a result of administrative reviews conducted at the request of a foreign producer or
other party. :

In addition, antidumping and countervailing duty orders may be revoked as a result of periodic “sunset
reviews.” Under the sunset review procedure, an order must be revoked after five years unless the United States
Department of Commerce and the International Trade Commission determine that dumping is likely to continue
or recur and that material injury to the domestic industry is likely to continue or recur. Antidumping duty orders
currently cover imports of tubulars from Argentina, Italy, Japan, Korea and Mexico, and a counterveiling duty
order currently covers imports from Italy. If the orders covering imports from these countries are revoked in full or
in part or the duty rates lowered, we could be exposed to increased competition from imports that could reduce
our sales and market share or force us to lower prices. Tubulars produced by domestic steel mills and threaded by
us may not be able ro economically compete with tubulars manufacrured and threaded at steel mills outside of the
United States.




Pressure Control Products. We have three primary competitors in the pressure control market, the Cameron
segment of Cooper Cameron, the Drilling Equipment Sales segment of Varco International, and the Petroleum
Equipment segment of Stewart & Stevenson Services. There are also more than ten smaller competitors. We
believe that we are the largest manufacturer of annular blowout preventers worldwide and a leading provider of
subsea pressure control equipment. We believe the principal competitive factors in the pressure control products
market are product quality and reliability, product design and engineering, price, and the ability to provide timely
service and replacement parts.

Our Employees

As of December 31, 2001, we had a total of approximately 1,500 full-time and full-time equivalent
employees. Approximately 510 of those employees were employed by our international subsidiaries and are located
outside the United States. Subsequent to year-end, we reduced our premium connection workforce at our
manufacturing facilities in the United States. At January 31, 2002, we had a total of approximately 1,400 full-time
and full-time equivalent employees.

We are a party to two collective bargaining agreements, which applies to approximately 67 employees located
in Veracruz, Mexico and approximately 50 employees in Port Harcourt and Warri, Nigeria. These agreements are
subject to annual review. We believe our relations with our employees are good.

Insurance

Our operations are subject to the risks inherent in manufacturing products and providing services to the oil
and gas exploration and production industry. These risks include personal injury and loss of life, business
interruptions, loss of production and property and equipment damage. Damages arising from an occurrence at a
location where our products are used, have in the past and may in the future result in the assertion of potentially
large claims against us.

We maintain comprehensive insurance covering our assets and operations, including product liability and
workers’ compensation insurance, at levels that we believe to be apprapriate. We attempt to obtain agreements
from our customers providing for indemnification against liability to others. Our insurance is subject to deduct-
ibles and in some cases only applies to losses in excess of significant amounts. In such cases, we bear the risk of loss
for claims below these deductibles or amounts. We cannot assure you that our insurance coverage will be adequate
in all circumstances or against all hazards nor can we assure you that we will be able to maintain adequate
insurance coverage in the future at commercially reasonable rates or on acceptable terms.

Regulation

Our business is affected by changes in public policy, federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to
the energy industry. The adoption of laws and regulations curtailing exploration and development drilling for oil
and gas for economic, environmental and other policy reasons may adversely affect our operations by limiting
available drilling and other opportunities in the oil and gas exploration and production industry.

Our Unirted States and foreign operations are subject to increasingly stringent laws and regulations relating to
environmental protection, including laws and regulations governing air emissions, water discharges, waste man-
agement and workplace safety. Many of our operations, including painting operations at certain locations, require
permits that may be revoked or modified, that we are required to renew from time to time. Failure to comply with
such laws, regulations or permits can result in substantial fines and criminal sanctions, or require us to purchase
costly pollution control equipment or implement operational changes or improvements.

Because we use hazardous substances in our manufacturing operations, we may be responsible for remediat-
ing hazardous substances at our properties or at third party sites to which we sent waste for disposal. In addition,
we currently own or lease, and have in the past owned or leased, numerous properties that for many years have
been used for industrial purposes, including manufacturing. While we believe that we are currently utilizing
operating and disposal practices that are in substantial compliance with applicable environmental laws and
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regulations, historical operating and disposal practices that were standard in the past may have resulted in the
disposal or release of wastes on or under the properties we owned or leased, or on-or under other locations where
such wastes have been taken for disposal. These properties and wastes may be subject to the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, commonly known as CERCLA or Superfund, the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and analogous state laws. Under these laws, we may be required to
remove previously disposed wastes and to remediate property contamination or to perform remedial operations to
prevent future contamination. - ‘

CERCLA imposes liability, without regard to fault or the legality of the original conduct, for the releases of
hazardous substances into the environment. Persons subject to CERCLA include the owner and operator of the
disposal site or sites where the release occurred and companies that generated, disposed or arranged for the
disposal of the hazardous wastes found at the site. Persons who are responsible for releases of hazardous substances
under CERCLA may be subject to joint and several liability for the costs of cleaning up the resulting contamina-
tion and for damages to natural resources. It is not uncommon for neighboring landowners and other third parties
to file claims for personal injury and property damage allegedly caused by the hazardous substances released into
the environment. ‘

We have been identified as a potentially responsible party at one CERCLA site, the Operating Industries,
Inc. Landfill Superfund site in California, to which we formerly sent waste oils and other materials for disposal.
Our agreed upon share of the total cleanup costs is approximately $303,000, which we expect to disburse during
2002. We have adequate reserves for this obligation and it will not have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition or results of operation. We have also been identified as a potentially responsible party under analogous
state law with respect to a waste disposal site near Houston, Texas. Based on (1) the number of other potentially
responsible parties, the total estimated site cleanup costs and our estimated share of such costs, including the
possibility that our share of wastes may be viewed as de minimis by the EPA, state agencies and other potentially
responsible parties, and (2) the availability of defenses to liability, including the availability of the “petroleum
exclusion” under CERCLA and similar state laws, we do not expect this matter to have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition or results of operation. We also have in the past been identified as a potentially responsible
party at other CERCLA or state cleanup sites. In each case, we have resolved our liability without incurring
material costs. :

Although we believe that we are in substantial compliance with existing environmental laws and regulations,
we cannot assure you that we will not incur substantial costs in the future. Moreover, it is possible that
implementation of stricter environmental laws, regulations and enforcement policies could result in additional,
currently unquantifiable costs or liabilities to us.

International Matters

In 2001, approximately 57% of our total revenues were derived from services or equipment ultimately
provided or delivered to end-users outside the United States, and approximately 32% of our revenues were derived
from products which were produced outside of the United States. We are, therefore, significantly exposed to the
risks customarily attendant to international operations and investments in foreign countries. These risks include
political instability and civil disturbances, war, nationalization, expropriation, and nullification of contracts,
changes in regulations and labor practices, changes in currency exchange rates and potential devaluations, changes
in currency restrictions which could limit the repatriations of profits, restrictive actions by local governments and
changes in foreign tax laws.
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ITEM 2 — PROPERTIES

The following table details our principal facilities, all of which we own, except as indicated below.

Approximate
Square
Location Footage Description
United States
Houston, Texas. . ........ ... ... 281,000 Pressure control products manufacturing;
principal executive offices
Houston, Texas............. .o n. .. 100,000 Premium connection manufacturing
Houston, Texas. .. ..o v .. 100,000 Pressure control elastomer products
manufacturing
Houston, Texas. ... oo ... 59,000 Advanced composite tubing manufacturing
Bakersfield, California (leased) ............. 8,000 Premium connection manufacturing;
warehouses pressure control replacement
parts
Westwego, Louisiana .................... 40,000 Premium connection manufacturing
International
Nisku, Alberta, Canada (leased) ... ......... 48,000 Premium connection manufacturing
Batam, Indonesia (Land is leased) .......... 30,000 Premium connection manufacturing
Veracruz, Mexico ..., 100,000 Premium connection manufacturing
Veracruz, Mexico (leased) ................. 25,000 Thread protector manufacturing for premium
connections
Port Harcourt, Nigeria (leased) ............ 10,000 Repair and service of premium connections
Warri, Nigeria............ [ 20,000 Repair and service of premium connections
Aberdeen, Scotland . . ... ... ... L L. 20,000 Premium connection manufacturing;
warehouses pressure control replacement
parts

We have 23 sales and service offices worldwide in Alaska, California, Louisiana, Texas, Wyoming, Canada,
Indonesia, Mexico, Nigeria, Singapore, Venezuela and the United Kingdom. Most of these ofhices provide service
personnel to support rig operators. All of these offices are under lease, with leases ranging in duration from one
month to two years. Our subsea mudlift drilling development and commercialization group is located in a
separate leased facility in Houston, Texas. We also have approximately 118 acres of undeveloped land surrounding
some of the properties listed above and 72 acres of addirional undeveloped land.

ITEM 3 — LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved in legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. In our opinion, these matters
will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 4 — SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote by stockholders during the quarter ended December 31, 2001.
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ITEM S-K 401(b) — EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table provides information regarding our executive officers as of December 31, 2001.

Name ‘ Age Position(s)

Richard C. Seaver............ R 79  Chairman of the Board

Christopher T. Seaver.................... ~.. 53  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Charles E. Jones .. ... ... ... o i 42 Vice President—DPressure Control

Neill G.Russell .......... ... . .. ... .. ..... 56 Vice President—Premium Connection

Michael C. Kearney .......... ... ... ...... 52 Chief Financial Officer and Vice President—
Administration

‘Richard C. Seaver is our Chairman of the Board, a position he has held since 1992. Previously, Mr. Seaver has
served as a director since 1964, as President from 1964 to 1986, and as Secretary and General Counsel from 1957
to 1964.

Christopher T. Seaver is our President and Chief Executive Officer and a director. He has served as President
since June 1993 and as Chief Executive Officer and as a director since February 1997. Mr. Seaver joined Hydril in
1985 and served as Executive Vice President in charge of Hydril’s premium connection and pressure control
businesses from 1991 until May 1993. He is a director and the secretary of the Petroleum Equipment Suppliers
Association and a director and a member of the executive committee of the National Ocean Industries Associa-
tion. Prior to joining Hydril, Mr. Seaver was a corporate and securities attorney for Paul, Hastings, Janofsky &
Wialker, and was a Foreign Service Officer in the U.S. Department of State, with postings in Kinshasa, Congo and
Bogota, Colombia.

Charles E. jJones is Vice President of our Pressure Control segment, a position he was appointed to in
November 2001. Previously, he served as our Managing Director—Pressure Control beginning in March 1998.
From March 1996 to March 1998, Mr. Jones served as Director of Subsea Business for Cooper Cameron
Corporation, a provider of oil and gas drilling equipment. Mr. Jones served as Engineering Manager for Subsea
Offshore, formerly Dresser Industries, a manufacturer of oil and gas drilling equipment from April 1995 to March
1996. Prior to holding these positions, Mr. Jones had 11 years of service with us.

Neil G. Russell is Vice President of our Premium Connection segment, a position he was appointed to in
November 2001. Previously, he was Managing Director—Eastern Hemisphere Premium Connection, beginning
in March 1995. Overall, Mr. Russell has had 23 years of service with our company, in which he has held various
management positions in our premium connection and pressure control businesses with assignments in Singapore,
Switzerland, the United Kingdom and the United States. '

Michael C. Kearney is our Chief Financial Officer and Vice President—Administration, positions he has held
since August 1998. Prior to joining our company, Mr. Kearney was a consultant with Kearney Associates, an
independent financial consulting firm, from September 1996 to August 1998.
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ITEM 5 — MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock has been traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “HYDL” since
September 27, 2000. The following table shows the high and low sale prices of our common stock as reported by
the Nasdaq National Market for 2001 and the third and fourth quarter of 2000.

High Low

2001

First Quarter. .. ...ovit e $25.94  $16.00
Second Quarter . ... .. e 33.20 20.59
Third Quarter ... 25.00 12.89
Fourth Quarter. . ....... ... . 22.86 13.68
2000

Third Quarter (beginning September 27, 2000) .......... $23.50  $19.00
Fourth Quarter.......... .. . 22.88 13.75

As of December 31, 2001, there were nine holders of record of our common stock and the closing sales price
per share of our common stock as reported by the Nasdaq National Market was $17.63. Based on inquiries made
in connection with preparations for our 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, Hydril estimates that there are at
least 2,300 beneficial holders of our common stock. Additionally, there were 44 holders of record of our class B
common stock as of December 31, 2001.

We have no plans to declare or pay any dividends on our common stock or our class B common stock for the
foreseeable furure.

Use of Proceeds

In October 2000, we completed an initial public offering of 8,600,000 shares of common stock, which were
sold at $17.00 per share. Of the 8,600,000 shares, 2,672,668 shares were sold by Hydril and 5,927,332 shares
were sold by existing stockholders. Gross proceeds to Hydril were $45.4 million and gross proceeds to the selling
stockholders were $100.8 million. In connection with this offering, Hydril incurred $3.2 million in underwriting
discounts and commissions, and $2.6 million in other related expenses. The net proceeds to Hydril from the
offering, after deducting the foregoing expenses, were $39.6 million. None of Hydril’s proceeds from the offering
have been or will be paid to directors, officers, affiliates of Hydril, or persons owning 10% or more of any class of
Hydril’s common stock.

Since completing the offering, we have used $16.3 million of the proceeds for the initial costs to expand
capacity at our premium connection facilities in the United States and Canada, $7.2 million to upgrade
machinery and equipment in our Houston pressure control plants and $2.6 million for the expansion of our
advanced composite tubing production and development and commercialization of our subsea mudlift drilling
technology. The balance of the proceeds to Hydril ($13.5 million at December 31, 2001) is invested in various
high-grade securities and money market accounts and will be used to complete approved capital expenditures that
are currently in progress to expand our capacity to produce premium connections, upgrade machine tools that we
use in the manufacturing of our pressure control products and commercialize our subsea mudlift drilling
technology.
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ITEM 6 — SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data of Hydril should be read in conjunction with “Manage-
ment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

. Years Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

(In thousands, except per share data)

Operating Datas

Revenues:

Premium connection . ............... $138,887 $ 94,983 $ 75,362 $116,256 $111,472

Pressure control ... ... .. .. .. ... 100,674 85,039 84,063 122,956 106,635

Total revenues ............... 239,561 180,022 159,425 239,212 218,107

Gross profit ... ... 84,217 56,220 25,655 30,404 27,427
Selling, general and administration

EXPENSES « « v v oo e e P 41,887 34,802 33,404 41,048 32,945
Gain on sale of manufacturing facility(1) . . — — — — 4,520
Operating income (loss)(2) .. ........... 42,330 21,418 (7,749)  (10,644) (998)
Interest expense . . ... 4,403 4,963 5,528 4,347 1,720
Interest INCOME .« v v v v e oo e et 2,874 2,320 1,314 855 857
Other income (expense) ............... {(1,082)(6) 5,433(3) 997 (7,834)(4) 20,682(3)
Net income (1oss) .+ .. vvveeini ... $ 25,619 $ 15,614 $ (7,237) $(14,500) $ 12,320
Income (loss) per share(7): ’

Basic ... $ 115 $ 078 $ (0.37) $ (0.75) $ 064

Diluted .......... ... ... .. ...... $ 1.13 $ 076 $ (0.37) $ (0.75) $ 0.64
Weighted average shares outstanding(7):

Basic ... ... 22,211 20,023 19,379 19,384 19,385

Diluted .......... .. ... ... ... ... 22,575 20,557 19,379 19,384 19,385
Other Data:
Capirtal expenditures .................. $ 29,525 $ 13,575 $ 8790 $ 15767 $ 28,444
Depreciation .................. .. .... 9,207 8,579 7.851 6,324 5,259
EBITDA(8) ... 50,455 35,430 1,099 (12,154) 24,943
Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital .......... ... ... ... $130,728 $116,911 $ 81,378 $ 97,227 $ 89,078
Property, net .. ..., ... 100,038 79,070 74,579 73,861 64,418
Total assets. . v v vve e 292,171 254,646 211,808 259,076 248,808
Long-term debt and capiral leases, :

excluding current portion ............ 60,000 60,286 73,039 76,244 27,028
Other long-term liabilities. . ............ 15,575 15,549 18,011 18,137 15,535
Total stockholders’ equity .............. 160,185 131,729 76,446 83,683 100,710

(1) We sold our Singapore manufacturing facilicy for $6.2 million in cash in 1997, resulting in a pre-tax gain of
approximately $4.5 million.

(2) Results of operations include $26.5 million of operating losses in 1997, $27.5 million of operating losses in
1998,.$3.7 million of operating losses in 1999, and $1.5 million of operating losses in 2000, under fixed-price
contracts to provide pressure control equipment and subsea control systems for pressure control equipment.
OCur 1999 results of operations also include a $10.5 million pre-tax charge to replace some of our blowout
preventer equipment. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.”

(3) Other income for 1997 was comprised primarily of a gain on the sale of our interest in XLS Holding, Inc. We
obtained a 50% interest in XLS Holding, Inc. in 1994 as a result of our settlement of litigation with
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XL Systems, Inc. and in consideration for our licensing to XL Systems of several of our patented thread
connections. Our interest in XLS Holding was accounted for using the equity method. In 1997, we sold our
50% interest in XLS Holding to Weatherford International in exchange for Weatherford stock and recorded a
pre-tax gain of $18.5 million.

(4) For 1998, other expense included a pre-tax $6.1 million permanent decline in the fair market value of the
Weatherford stock obtained in 1997 and held for sale, and pre-tax $2.8 million for the cost of put options to
sell the stock.

(5) Other income for 2000 includes a pre-tax gain of $3.6 million for the settlement of a dispute with a financial
institution from which Hydril purchased put options to sell Weatherford stock in 1998 and a pre-tax gain of
$1.9 million from the sale of real estate not used in operations.

(6) Includes $570,000 in expenses incurred in facilitating the offering of common stock by certain of the
Company’s stockholders during the second quarter of 2001 pursuant to a registration rights agreement.

(7) Share and per share data have been retroactively restated to reflect the reclassification of pre-offering shares of
common stock into shares of class B common stock and the dividend of five shares of class B common stock
for each share of class B common stock, both of which occurred on September 25, 2000.

(8) EBITDA consists of net income (loss) before interest expense, provision (benefit) for income taxes and
depreciation, less interest income. EBITDA is not a measure of financial performance under generally
accepted accounting principles. You should not consider it in isolation from or as a substitute for net income
or cash flow measures prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles or as a measure of
our profitability or liquidity. EBITDA is included as a supplemental disclosure because it may provide useful
information regarding our ability to service debt and to fund capital expenditures.

ITEM 7 — MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of Hydril’s historical results of operations and financial condition should be read in
conjunction with Hydril’s consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this
Form 10-K.

CVERVIEW

We are engaged worldwide in engineering, manufacturing and marketing premium connections and pressure
control products used for oil and gas drilling and production. Demand for our products and services is cyclical
and substantially dependent on the activity levels in the oil and gas industry and our customers willingness to
spend capital on the exploration and development of oil and gas reserves. The level of these capital expenditures is
highly sensitive to current and expected oil and gas prices, which have historically been characterized by significant
volatility. Oil and gas prices are affected by numerous factors, including the level of worldwide oil and gas
exploration and production activity, and worldwide supply and demand for energy, which is affected by
worldwide economic conditions. Additional factors include the policies of the Organization of Petroleum Export-
ing Countries, or OPEC, the cost of producing oil and gas, environmental regulation, tax policies and policies of
national governments, interest rates, technological advances affecting energy consumption, and the cost of capital.

Our premium connection products are marketed primarily to oil and gas operators.. Sales of premium
connection products are driven by the level of worldwide drilling activity, in particular the number of rigs drilling
over 15,000 feet and the number of rigs drilling in water depths greater than 1,500 feet. We sell our pressure
control products primarily to drilling contractors. Drilling contractors purchase pressure control capital equip-
ment products and aftermarket replacement parts for use in oil and gas drilling and production. The main factors
that affect sales of capital equipment products are the level of construction of new drilling rigs and the rate at
which existing rigs are refurbished. Demand for our aftermarket replacement parts, repair and field services is
driven primarily by the level of worldwide offshore drilling activity.

Beginning in late 1996, stabilization of oil and gas prices fueled increased drilling activity, the construction
of new drilling rigs and the upgrade of many existing drilling rigs. During this period of increasing activity, we
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expanded our premium connection production capacity and refurbished machine tools used in many of our
premium connection plants. From 1997 to mid-1999, we spent $18.1 million to construct new premium
connection manufacturing facilities in Indonesia and Mexico, and to expand and upgrade an existing premium
connection manufacturing facility in Houston, Texas that had been idle since 1986. Additionally, we imple-
mented an enterprise resource planning information system in 1998 at a cost of $6.1 million.

During the period beginning in 1996 and through 1999, we entered into long-term, fixed-price contracts to
manufacture and deliver pressure control equipment and subsea control systems for pressure control equipment.
We incurred operating losses, including late delivery penalties, of $26.5 million in 1997, $27.5 million in 1998,
$3.7 million in 1999, and $1.5 million in 2000 relating to these fixed-price contracts. These contracts did not
allow us to recoup all of our expenses from the design, development and production of these control systems
which had no prior prototypes. As of December 31, 2000, all of the subsea control systems and all of the pressure
control equipment under these fixed price contracts had been shipped. We did not incur any operating losses in
2001 and do not expect to incur any additional operating losses in connection with these fixed price contracts.

In the second half of 1998, the price of oil began to fall and reached levels as low as $10.78 per barrel for
West Texas Intermediate crude compared to over $25.00 per barrel in early 1997. The downturn in oil prices led
our customers to substantally curtail their drilling and exploration activity, as well as the construction and
refurbishment of drilling rigs, during the second half of 1998 through 1999. The rig count in the United States
and Canada, as measured by Baker Hughes, fell from 1,481 rigs in February 1998 to a low of 558 rigs in April
1999. The rig count outside of the United States and Canada fell from 819 rigs in January 1998 to a low of 556
rigs in August 1999. This resulted in substantially lower purchases of premium connections and pressure control
equipment. In response to this lower demand for our products and services, during 1999 we reduced our
workforce in the United States by approximately 325 employees, or 20% of our total work force.

From mid-1999 to mid-2000, the price of oil increased significantly due to OPEC member countries
reducing production and recovering worldwide demand for oil. In addition, gas prices increased significantly
during this period and peaked in late 2000 as a result of low levels of gas storage in the United States. These
higher prices triggered a substantial increase in the number of rigs drilling for oil and gas in the United States and
Canada. The United States average monthly rig count for 2000 was 916 rigs, as measured by Baker Hughes, a
51% increase over the average monthly rig count for 1999 of 608 rigs. The average monthly Canadian rig count
for 2000 was 344, an increase of 40% over the average monthly Canadian count of 246 rigs for 1999. Rig counts
continued to improve during the first half of 2001 with the United States rig count peaking at 1,293 in July of
2001. These improvements in market fundamentals stimulated an increase in the demand for our products in the
United States and Canada, in particular premium connection products and pressure control aftermarket replace-
ment parts. In response to this increase in demand, we completed a 50% expansion of our premium connection
capacity at our plant in Nisku, Canada in January 2001, and increased capacity in the United States by 30%
during 2000 and 2001.

However, beginning mid-2001, commodity prices started to fall, particularly natural gas prices, which fell
sharply. The decline in commodity prices led to a decline in drilling in North America, in particular in the
number of rigs drilling in deep formations for natural gas in North America. The rig counts in the United States
and Canada combined, as measured by Baker Hughes, fell from 1,631 in July 2001 to 1,085 in December 2001, a
33% decrease. At the end of February 2002, the United States rig count declined 12% to 782 from 887 at the end
of 2001. This decrease included a reduction in the number of rigs drilling over 15,000 feet and the number of rigs
in water depths greater than 1,500 feet. As a result, in the fourth quarter of 2001 we began to experience a decline
in demand for premium connections and late in that quarter, a significant decrease in plant utilization in the
United States. Accordingly, we reduced our premium connection workforce at our manufacturing facilities in the
United States by approximately 30% in January 2002.

Internationally, our premium connection business has not been impacted by the decline in rig counts
experienced in North America during 2001. Our international business generally has longer lead times than our
North America business, typically four to six months. The average monthly rig count outside of the United States
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and Canada for 2001 was 745, compared to 652 for 2000, an increase of 14%. The 2000 rig count was up 11%
compared to 1999. At the end of February 2002, the international rig count was at 716.

Demand in the industry for new pressure control capital equipment was not as strong during 2000 and 2001
compared to demand for premium connections and aftermarket replacement parts, due to the low level of rig
construction and refurbishment worldwide. However, in August 2000, our pressure control segment received an
order for a blowout preventer multiplex control system, which was delivered in August 2001, on time and at
projected cost. In March 2001, our pressure control segment received a $37 million order for four offshore drilling
blowout prevention and control systems from GlobalSantaFe Corporation. Deliveries are expected to begin in the
second quarter of 2002 and continue into late 2003. In addition, during 2001 we received two orders from a
subsidiary of Diamond Offshore Dirilling, Inc. for blowout preventer multiplex control systems. Deliveries of these
systems are expected in the fourth quarter of 2002 and second quarter of 2003. The revenue and gross profit from
these orders are being recognized using the percentage-of-completion accounting method.

During 2001, approximately 57% of our revenues were derived from equipment sales and services ultimately
provided to end-users for use outside of the United States and approximately 32% of our revenues were derived
from products that were produced outside of the United States.

Revenues

With the exception of revenues from pressure control long-term projects, we record revenues for all products
and services at the time such products are delivered or services are provided. In 2001, 92% of our revenues were
recorded on this basis. For our pressure control long-term projects (which are generally contracts from six to
eighteen months in duration and an estimated contract price in excess of $1 million), we recognize revenues using
the percentage-of-completion method, measured by the percentage of cost incurred to estimated final cost. We use
this method because we consider expended contract costs to be the best available measure of progress on these
contracts. If a long-term contract was anticipated to have an estimated loss, such loss would be recognized in the
period in which the loss becomes apparent.

Gross Profit

Our gross profit is the difference between our revenues and our cost of sales. Cost of sales for our products
include purchased raw materials and components, manufacturing labor, plant overhead expenses, a portion of
engineering expenses, and building and equipment depreciation. Some of the costs are fixed cost and cause our
margins to suffer when demand is low and manufacturing capacity is underutilized. Also included in cost of sales
are the costs of product warranty, product liability insurance and last in, first out inventory valuation adjustments.
We do nort take title to the tubulars we thread for the United States and Canadian markert, and therefore, own no
inventories of tubulars for sales in these countries. However, we purchase tubulars for fulfilling a portion of our
existing orders outside of the United States and Canada, which is generally less than 10% of our total revenues.
For our pressure control products, we have inventory for existing orders in process as well as a replacement parts
inventory both internationally and domestically. A majority of our inventory is for our pressure control segment.

Selling, General and Administration Expenses

Our selling, general and administration expenses include engineering expenses that relate to research, product
design, development and maintenance; as well as sales and marketing expenses, which consist mostly of personnel
and related expenses, and commissions paid to third-party agents selling our products. Also included are general
and administration expenses thart relate to accounting, treasury, information technology, human resources, legal
expenses and corporate overhead.

Operating Income (Loss)

Our operating income (loss) is gross profit less selling, general and administration expenses. Operating
income (loss) is comprised of the operating income of each of our premium connection and pressure control
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segments and the portion of selling, general and administration expenses, referred to as corporate administration,
which is not allocated to either segment.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

Revenues

Total revenues increased $59.5 million, or 33%, to $239.6 million for 2001 from $180.0 million in 2000.
Premium connection revenue rose 46% to $138.9 million and pressure control revenue increased 18% to
$100.7 million. The increase in premium connection revenue was primarily the result of increased demand for our
products as a result of higher rig counts in both our North American (United States and Canada) and
international markets, and our expansion of plant capacity in North America to accommodate the higher demand.
The increase in pressure control revenue was attributable to a 25% increase in revenues from the sale of
aftermarket replacement parts due to higher worldwide rig activity, and an 11% increase in revenues from the sale
of capital equipment due to an increase in project orders received during 2001.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased $28.0 million to $84.2 million for 2001 from $56.2 million in 2000. The increase was
primarily due to an increase in revenues from pressure control aftermarket replacement parts that generate higher
margins, increased utilization of our premium connection plants in North America, increased profitability of our
pressure control capital equipment business and higher prices in both of our segments.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $7.1 million to $41.9 million for 2001 compared to
$34.8 million for 2000. The increase was due to higher engineering costs to support capital equipment orders, an
increase in sales agent commissions and sales expenses as a result of increased demand for our products, and higher
management incentive accruals resulting from improved performance. As a percentage of sales, selling, general and
administrative expenses decreased from 19% for 2000 to 17% for 2001.

Operating Income

Operating income increased $20.9 million to $42.3 million for 2001, compared to $21.4 million for 2000.
Operating income for our premium connection segment increased 23% to $31.5 million for 2001 compared to
2000. Operating income for our pressure control segment increased $12.6 million to $21.1 million for 2001 from
$8.5 million for 2000. Corporate and administration expenses were $10.3 million for 2001 compared to
$12.8 million in 2000.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $0.6 million from $5.0 million for 2000 to $4.4 million for 2001 due to lower
outstanding debt in 2001.

Other Income and Expense

For 2001, other expense was $1.1 million, which included $0.6 million in expenses incurred in facilitating
the offering of common stock by certain of our stockholders in the second quarter of 2001 and $0.5 million to
maintain surplus real estate and facilities not used in operations. For 2000, other income was $5.4 million, which
includes a $3.6 million gain from a legal settlement related to the purchase of put options to sell marketable
securities, and a $1.9 million gain recorded from the sale of real estate not used in operations. For further
information on these transactions, see Note 8 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1989

Revenues

Total revenues increased $20.6 million, or 13%, to $180.0 million for 2000 from $159.4 in 1999. Premium
connection revenue rose 26% to $95.0 million and pressure control revenue increased slightly from $84.1 million
to $85.0 million. The increase in premium connection revenue was due to the increased demand in the North
American (United States and Canada) market, for which sales revenues for 2000 increased 67% compared to
1999. The increase in pressure control revenue is attributable to a 20% increase in revenues from aftermarket
products, which was partially offset by a 15% decrease in revenues from capital equipment. In 2000, the product
mix in the pressure control segment shifted toward aftermarket parts from capital equipment compared with 1999
due to fewer rigs under construction or being refurbished. Revenue from capital equipment decreased in 2000
compared to 1999 due to the completion of long-term capital projects received in the last rig construction and
refurbishment upcycle.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased $30.5 million to $56.2 million for 2000 from $25.7 million in 1999. The increase in
gross profit was due in part to a $10.5 million charge in 1999 to replace some of our pressure control equipment
due to welds that did not meet company standards. Also contributing to the higher gross margin was a shift in the
pressure control product sales mix from lower margin capital equipment to higher margin aftermarket replacement
parts. During the fourth quarter of 2000, final installation and customer acceptance of capital equipment for
several long-term projects generated higher than anticipated operating margins. For premium connections, higher
gross margins resulted from higher plant production and sales volumes in the United States and Canada, and price
increases in the United States during 2000.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $1.4 million to $34.8 million for 2000 compared to
$33.4 million for 1999. The increase is due to higher professional service expense and management incentive

expense accruals resulting from improved performance. As a percentage of sales, selling, general and administrative
expenses decreased from 21% for 1999 to 19% for 2000.

Operating Income

Operating income was $21.4 million for 2000, compared to an operating loss of $7.7 million in 1999.
Operating income for our premium connection segment increased 40% to $25.7 million for 2000 compared to
1999. Operating income for our pressure control segment increased to $8.5 million for 2000 from a loss of
$16.2 million for 1999. Corporate and administration expenses were $12.8 million for 2000 compared to

$9.8 million in 1999.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $.5 million from $5.5 million for 1999 to $5.0 million for 2000 due to the
reduction of outstanding debt resulting from cash generated from operations.

Other Income and Expense

For 2000, other income was $5.4 million, which includes a $3.6 million gain from a legal settlement related
to the purchase of put options to sell marketable securities, and a $1.9 million gain recorded from the sale of real
estate not used in operations. For 1999, other income was $1.0 million, which included a gain on the sale of
surplus property of $0.7 million and a gain on the sale of marketable securities of $0.3 million. For further
information on these transactions, see Note 8 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our primary liquidity needs are to fund capital expenditures, such as expanding and upgrading manufactur-
ing facilities and capacity, to fund new product development and to provide additional working capital. Our
primary sources of funds have been from our initial public offering completed in October 2000 from which we
received net proceeds of $39.6 million, cash flow from operations, reimbursement of costs related to the joint
industry project to develop a subsea mudlift drilling system in which we participated and proceeds from -
borrowings under our bank facilities.

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities was $45.1 million for 2001 and $27.9 million for 2000. The increase
in cash provided by operations in 2001 compared to 2000 was primarily the result of improved operating results
in both of our segments driven by higher revenues and contractual cash payments from customers on project
orders in backlog which will be expended to complete the projects over the next eighteen months. Cash provided
by operations in 2000 was $17.2 million higher than 1999 as a result of improved operating results partially offset
by increased working capital requirements. ‘

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for 2001 was $29.5 million compared to $7.9 million for 2000. The
increase in net cash used for 2001 compared to 2000 was due to higher capital spending and one-time cash
receipts in 2000. These one-time cash receipts included a May 2000 settlement payment from a dispute with a
financial institution related to our purchase of put options on marketable securities. As a result of this settlement,
we received, after expenses, approximately $3.6 million. Additionally, in July 2000, we sold certain real property
not used in our operations for proceeds of approximately $2.1 million, net of expenses from the sale.

Cash provided by investing activities for 1999 was $6.3 million, which included $13.1 million in proceeds
from the sale of marketable securities, $2.0 million from the sale of real estate holdings not used in operations, and
partially offset by capital spending of $8.8 million. For more information on capital expenditures for the three
years ended December 31, 2001, see “Capital Expenditures” below. ‘

Credit Facilities

We have a domestic revolving line of credit for working capital requirements that provides up to $25.0 mil-
lion in committed revolving credit borrowings through March 31, 2003. Effective September 25, 2001, this
facility became unsecured. We may borrow, at our election, at either a prime or LIBOR based interest rate.

" Interest rates under the facility fluctuate depending on our leverage ratio and are LIBOR plus a spread ranging
from 125 to 200 basis points or prime. At December 31, 2001, there were no outstanding borrowings under this
facility. Our revolving credit agreement contains covenants with respect to debt levels, tangible net worth, debt-to-
capitalization and interest coverage ratios. At December 31, 2001, we were in compliance with these covenants.

Additionally, Hydril has a committed foreign line of credit for $10.0 million and an uncommitted foreign
line of credit for $4.0 million. The committed line is an unsecured facility established in September 2001. We
may, at our election, borrow under it at either a prime or LIBOR based interest rate. Interest rates under the
committed credit line fluctuate depending on the Company’s leverage ratio and are prime plus a spread ranging
from zero to 25 basis points or LIBOR plus a spread ranging from 125 to 225 basis points. At December 31,
2001, there were no outstanding borrowings under this facility.

The uncommitted line can be terminated at the bank’s discretion and the interest rate is a fixed rate based on
current Eurodollar market conditions at the time of the draw, which at December 31, 2001 would have been
4.5%. There were no borrowings under this line as of December 31, 2001.
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Other Indebtedness

In a June 1998 private placement, we issued $60.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.85% senior
secured notes due June 30, 2003. Effective September 2001, the senior notes became unsecured. The senior notes
may not be prepaid prior to maturity unless we pay the noteholders a make-whole premium based on prevailing
market interest rates, which as of December 31, 2001 would require a premium payment of $3.2 million. The
agreement under which the notes are outstanding requires us to maintain a minimum level of tangible net worth.
Additional financial tests, if not passed, restrict our ability to incur additional indebredness and make acquisitions,
investments and restricted payments, such as pay dividends and repurchase capital stock. At December 31, 2001,
we were in compliance with these financial requirements. A change in control would allow the holders to require
prepayment of some or all of the notes at 100% of their principal amount plus a make-whole premium based on
prevailing market interest rates.

Technology

The joint industry project (JIP) to develop dual gradient drilling technology completed its final phase in the
fourth quarter of 2001 by successfully drilling a test well in the Gulf of Mexico. The JIP consisted of Conoco
(administrator), Hydril (project designer and technology leader) BP, ChevronTexaco, Diamond Offshore, Global-
SantaFe and Schlumberger. We contributed approximately $2.0 million of the $49.0 million in total project
expenditures. The JIP has completed its work and Hydril is pursuing commercialization through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, SubSea MudLift Drilling Company, LLC. Expenditures to commercialize this technology will be
expensed and are expected to be less than 5% of total selling, general and administrative expenses in 2002.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures for 2001 were $29.5 million, which consisted of $18.7 million for our premium
connection business, primarily related to the expansion of manufacturing capacity in North America, $9.2 million
for our pressure control segment, primarily for the replacement and upgrade of manufacturing machine tools, and
$1.6 million for general corporate purposes.

Capiral expenditures for 2000 were $13.6 million, which consisted of $10.5 million for our premium
connection business, primarily related to manufacturing capacity expansion in North America, $1.8 million for
our pressure control segment, primarily for manufacturing support, and $1.3 million for general corporate
purposes.

Capital expenditures for 1999 were $8.8 million, which were primarily for the relocation and expansion of
our Houston premium connection facility.

If current industry conditions continue, we expect our 2002 capital expenditures to be up to $20.0 million.
Planned capital expenditures include the expansion of our capacity to produce premium connections, the upgrade
of our machine tools we use to manufacture pressure control products, and product development.

Dividends

We have no plans to declare or pay any dividends on our common stock or our class B common stock for the
foreseeable future.

BACKLOG

Pressure control capital equipment backlog at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was $55.8 million and
$15.2 million, respectively. The increase in our backlog primarily reflects a $37 million order received during the
first quarter of 2001 and two additional orders received during the second and fourth quarters of 2001 for
blowout prevention and control system equipment. We include in this backlog orders for pressure control capital
equipment and long-term projects. It is possible for orders to be cancelled; however, in the event of cancellations
all costs incurred would be billable to the customer. We recognize the revenue and gross profit from pressure
control long-term projects using the percentage-of-completion accounting method and the remaining revenues
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from projects currently in backlog are expected to be recorded during 2002 and 2003. As revenues are recognized
under the percentage-of-completion method, the order value in backlog is reduced. Our backlog of premium
connection and pressure control aftermarket parts and service are not a meaningful measure of business prospects
due to the quick turnover of such orders.

TAX MATTERS

As of December 31, 2001, we had deferred tax assets, net of deferred tax liabilities, of $9.2 million, which
includes net operating loss carryforwards, or NOLs, and foreign tax credits. These assets are benefits to us as long
as we expect to have sufficient future income in the United States. NOLs total approximately $0.6 million and
must be used entirely before the foreign tax credits, which total approximately $7.7 million, can be used. The
NOLs are available to offset future taxable income through the year 2019 and the foreign tax credits are available
through the year 2005 to reduce future United States income taxes payable. We could lose the benefit of our
NOLs if we were to have a change of control. Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,
limits the ability of a corporation that undergoes an “ownership change™ to use its net operating losses_to reduce
its tax liability. Although we believe our initial public offering in October 2000 and the secondary offering
completed in May 2001 did not trigger such an ownership change, it is possible that a future offering of our
common stock or future transfers of our common stock may trigger an ownership change. In that event, we would
not be able to use our pre-ownership-change net operating losses in excess of the limitation imposed by
Section 382. '

Management projections indicate that sufficient income will be generated in future years to realize the tax
assets, and therefore, no valuation allowance was required.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our accounting policies are described in Note 1 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8. We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States, which require us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. We consider the following policies to be most critical in understanding the judgments that are
involved in preparing our financial statements and the uncertainties that could impact our results of operations,
financial condition and cashflows.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues for all products and services are recognized at the time such products are delivered or services are
performed, except as described below.

Revenues from long-term contracts, which are generally contracts from six to eighteen months and an
estimated contract price in excess of $1,000,000 are recognized using the percentage-of-completion method
measured by the percentage of cost incurred to estimated final cost. Contract costs include all direct material,
labor and subcontract costs and those indirect costs related to contract performance. If a long-term contract was
anticipated to have an estimated loss, such loss would be recognized in the period in-which the loss becomes
apparent. It is at least reasonably possible that estimates of contract costs could be revised in the near term.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Inventory costs include material, labor and production
overhead. Cost is determined by the last in, first out method for substantially all pressure control products
(approximately 81% and 80% of total gross inventories at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectlvely) and by the
first-in, first-out method for all other inventories.
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The Company periodically reviews its inventory for excess or obsolete items and provides a reserve for the
difference in the carrying value of excess or obsolete items and their estimated net realizable value.

Contingencies

Contingencies are accounted for in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s SFAS
No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies” (“SFAS”). SFAS No. 5 requires that we record an estimated loss from a
loss contingency when informarion available prior to the issuance of our financial statements indicates that it is
probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and
the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Accounting for contingencies such as environmental, legal,
and income tax martters requires us to use our judgment. While we believe that our accruals for these matters are
adequate, if the actual loss from a loss contingency is significantly different than the estimated loss, our results of
operations may be over or understated.

RECENT ACCOUNTHNGIPHONOUNCEMENTS

In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities”. SFAS 133 requires an entity to recognize all derivatives as an asset or liability measured at its fair value.
Depending on the intended use of the derivative, changes in its fair value will be reported in the period of change
as either a component of earnings or a component of other comprehensive income. SFAS 133 is effective for all
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000. Hydril adopted SFAS 133 effective January 1, 2001. The adoption of
this policy did not require any transition adjustment and thus, did not materially affect our results of operations or
financial condition.

In July 2001, the FASB issued two new pronouncements: SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”, and
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. SFAS 141 prohibits the use of the pooling-of-interest
method for business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and also applies to all business combinations
accounted for by the purchase method that are completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS 142, effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2001, addresses financial accounting and reporting for acquired goodwill and other
intangible assets and supercedes APB Opinion No. 17, Intangible Assets. It addresses how intangible assets that are
acquired individually or with a group of other assets (but not those acquired in a business combination) should be
accounted for in financial statements upon their acquisition. This statement also addresses how goodwill and
other intangible assets should be accounted for after they have been initially recognized in the financial statements.
The Company has evaluated the provisions of SFAS 141 and SFAS 142 and expects no material impact on its
financial statements from the adoption of these standards.

In August and October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obliga-
tions” and SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. SFAS 143 requires
entities to record the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred
and a corresponding increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Subsequently, the asset
retirement costs should be allocated to expense using a systematic and rational method. SFAS 143 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. SFAS 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the
impairment of long-lived assets and for long-lived assets to be disposed of. It supersedes, with exceptions,
SFAS 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived assets and Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of”, and
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company has evaluated the provisions of
SFAS 143 and SFAS 144 and expects no material impact on its financial statements from the adoption of these
standards.

ITEM 74, — QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest rate risk

We have long-term debt and revolving lines of credit subject to the risk of loss associated with movements in
Interest rates.
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At December 31, 2001, we had $60 million of fixed rate senior notes, having a fair value of $60.8 million.
Interest payable on these notes is at a fixed-rate and therefore, the notes do not expose us to the risk of earnings
loss due to changes in interest rates. However, the fair value of the notes would increase by approximately
$0.5 million if interest rates were to decline 10% from their level ar December 31, 2001. In general, such an
increase in fair value would impact earnings and cash flows only if we were to prepay all or a portion of the notes
prior to maturity.

There were no outstanding borrowings under our lines of credit at December 31, 2001. Floating-rate
obligations expose us to the risk of increased interest expense in the event of increases in short-term interest rates.

At December 31, 2001 or 2000, we did not hedge interest rate exposure.

Foreign currency exchange rate

Our operations are conducted in certain countries around the world in a number of different currencies. As
such, future earnings are subject to change due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates when transactions
are denominated in currencies other than our functional currency, the U.S. dollar. In order to mitigate the effect
of exchange rate changes, a substantal porcion of our contracts provide for collections from customers in
U.S. dollars. For 2001, approximately 64% of the sales from our foreign operations were in U.S. dollars and an
additional 21% of sales from these operations were in local currency but based on the exchange rate for the
U.S. dollar at the time of shipment.

We had no foreign currency denominated borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2001 or 2000.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

" To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Hydril Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hydril Company and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Houston, Texas
March 1, 2002
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HYDRIL COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, Except Share and Per Share Information)

December 31,

2001 2000
CURRENT ASSETS: . ‘
Cash and cash equivalents ... ... ... . ... $ 89,346 $ 73,279
Receivables:
Trade, less allowance for doubtful accounts: 2001, $1,332; 2000, $2,706 ................ 36,836 35,962
Contract costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings . ................. ... ... ... — 1,227
Other .« oot 642 2,820
Total receivables . ..ot 37,478 40,009
Inventories:
Finished goods ... ... 33,057 27,508
Work-In-process . . . ..o o v i ittt 9,525 4,600
Raw materials . . ... 6,295 8,039
Total INVENTOTIES . . o . ottt et et e e e e 48,877 40,147
Deferred tax asset . .. .ottt e 8,566 7,597
Other CUITENT a856TS . . o\ vt vttt ettt e et e e e e e e e 2,461 2,642
Total CUITENE ASSELS . . v v o v e e e et e e e ettt e e e e e e e e 186,728 163,674
PROPERTY:
Land and IMProvements. . .. ..o v vttt et e 18,344 18,231
Buildings and improvements . ........ .. .o . 41,854 39,031
Machinery and equipment ... ... ... e 138,064 126,000
ConstructioN-IN-PrOGIESS . . ...\ttt et e 17,753 5,487
Total . oo 216,015 188,749
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . . ...... .. ... oo (115,977) (109,679)
Property, Met. .ot 100,038 79,070
OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS:
Deferred TaX asset . . oottt e e 1,091 7,169
Oher aSSeTS . . v\ttt et e e 4,314 4,733
JO T AL . .. $ 292,171 $ 254,646
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable . ... $ 23,358 § 22,530
Billings in excess of contract costs and estimated earnings . ......... ... ..., 12,641 4,003
Accrued liabilities . . . ....... e e 17,266 17,973
Current portion of long-term debe ... ... 234 534
Current portion of capital leases .. .. .. e : 52 266
Income taxes payable ... ... .. e 2,449 1,397
Total current liabilities .. .. .. 56,000 46,763
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt, excluding current portion . ...... ... ... . i i i e 60,000 60,233
Capirtal lease obligations . . ... ... . . — 53
Deterred tax liabi%ity ........................................................... 411 319
Other . 15,575 15,549
Total long-term liabilities . .. ... 75,986 76,154
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 10)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Capital stock:
Preferred stock — authorized, 10,000,000 shares of $1 par value; none issued or outstanding
Common stock — authorized 75,000,000 shares of $.50 par value; 14,359,596 and
8,641,200 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively . . . 7,180 4,321
Class B common stock — authorized, 32,000,000 shares of $.50 par value; 7,966,404 and
13,410,908 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively . . 3,983 6,705
Additional paid in capital. . ... . 41,033 38,333
Retained earnings . .. ... ..o 107,989 82,370
Total stockholders’ equity. ... ... 160,185 131,729
TOT AL . . $292,171  $ 254,646

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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HYDRIL COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CPERATIONS

{(In thousands, Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

Year Ended Décember 31,

2001 . 2000 © 1999
REVENUES .. ... ... B $ 239,561 $ 180,022 $ 159,425
COST OF SALES . ... e 155,344 123,802 133,770
GROSS PROFIT .o e 84,217 56,220 25,655
SELLING, GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES ‘

Engineering. ....... ... i L. 10,338 7,033 7,059

Sales and marketing . ... ... o 15,174 13,205 14,282

General and administration . ........ o 16,375 14,564 12,063

Total .. 41,887 34,802 33,404
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) ..o 42,330 21,418 (7,749)
INTEREST EXPENSE .. ... i (4,403) (4,963) (5,528)
INTEREST INCOME ... . e 2,874 2,320 1,314
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):

Rental income (expense). ... (518) (2) 124
Gain on marketable securities .. ...... ... . .. ... — 3,576 253
Other ..o e (564) 1,859 620

Total ..o (1,082) 5,433 997
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES ........... 39,719 24,208 - (10,966)
PROVISION (BENEFIT) FOR INCOME TAXES ......... 14,100 8,594 (3,729)
NET INCOME (LOSS) ...\t $ 25619 $ 15614 $  (7,237)
INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE:
BASIC e .. % 1.15 $ 0.78 $ (0.37)
DILUTED . o e $ 1.13 $ 0.76 $ (0.37)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING
BASIC . e 22,210,612 20,022,607 . 19,379,040

DILUTED ... .. 22,574,734 20,557,495 19,379,040

i

See notes to consolidated financial statements

29




HYDRIL COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES [N STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001

{In thousands, Except Share Amounts)

Accumulated
Class B Additional Other
Common Stock Common Stock Paid in Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income Total
Balance, December 31, 1998..... — $ — 19,379,040 $9,690 $ —  $ 73,993 $— $ 83,683
Comprehensive Loss:
NetLoss................... S — — 5 — $ — $ (7,237) $— $ (7,237)
Total Comprehensive
Loss ...t — — — —_ — (7,237) — _ (7,237)
Balance, December 31, 1999. .. .. — 19,379,040  $9,690 $ $ 66,756 $— $ 76,446
Comprehensive Income: )
Net Income ................ — 5 — i — $ 15,614 $— $ 15,614
Total Comprehensive
Income............ — J— — — — 15,614 = 15,614
Shares sold by existing
stockholders in initial public
offering............ ... 5,927,332 2,965 (5,927,332) (2,965) — — — —
Issuance of Common stock in ' .
initial public offering . ..... ... 2,673,068 1,336 — — 38,333 — — 39,669
Conversion of Class B Common ‘
stock to Common stock ...... 40,800 20 (40,800) 20) — — $— —
Balance, December 31, 2000. .... 8,641,200 $4,321 13,410,908 $6,705 $38,333  § 82,370 $— $131,729
Net Income . ............... — % — — % — $ —  § 25,619 $: $ 25,619
Total Comprehensive
Income ............ — — — — — 25,619 — 25,619
Shares sold by existing
stockholders pursuant to a
registration rights agreement ... 5,234,616 2,617  (5,234,616) (2,617) — — — —
Issuance of Common stock-
employee stock purchase plan
and exercise of stock options . . . 230,035 115 — — 2,514 — =, 2,629
Issuance of Class B Common
stock-exercise of stock options . . — — 43,857 22 186 — — 208
Conversion of Class B Common .
stock to Common stock ...... 253,745 127 (253,745) (127) — — = —
Balance, December 31, 2001. .... 14,359,596 $7,180 7,966,404  $3,983 $41,033  $107,989 $— $160,185

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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HYDRIL COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{In thousands)

Year Ended
December 31,

2001 2000 1999

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income (Joss) . ..ottt e $ 25,619 $15,614 $ (7,237)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
DIEPIECIAtION v vttt e 9,207 8,579 7,851
Deferred INCOME TAXES .« . o v vt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e 5,200 3,213 (7,643)
Provision for doubtful accounts . ... ... i e 191 178 96
Gain on marketable secUrities. . . .. oot — — (253)
Loss on asset diSposition. . .. ...t i e — 626 —
Gain on sale of real estate holdings not used in operations.................... . ... ..., — (1,870) (649)
Gain on.put mediation settlement . .. ... — (3,576) —
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Recetvables ... ... ... A 1,113 (6,066) 13,086
Contract costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings .. ......... ... ... ..., . 1,227 6,889 18,666
INVENIOIIES .« o v ot ottt et et e e e e e e (8,730) 5,264 12,531
Other current and noncurrent assets .. .......... P 1,515 (895) 1,707
Accounts payable ... ... 828 8,206 (15,058)
Billings in excess of contract costs and estimated earnings .................. ... 8,578 (3,243) (3,772)
Accrued liabilities . ... ... o (707) (2,796) (7,989)
Income taxes payable .. ...... . . . ... 1,052 237 (1,226)
Orther long-term liabilities .. ....... .. . i 26 {2,462) 74
Net cash provided by operating activides . . ........... . .. ... 45,119 27,898 10,184
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: )
Proceeds from sale of real estate holdings not used in operations . .................. ... ... — 2,100 1,996
Proceeds from disposition of assets. . ... ... o — 42 —
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities ... ... ... .. . 0 — — 13,108
Proceeds from put mediation settlement ......... . o oo — 3,576 —
Capital expenditures . . ... ..ot e (29,525)  (13,575) (8,790)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ........... ... i, (29,525) (7,857) 6,314
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from bosrowings.............. S P 1,095 2,697 —
Repayment of debt ... ... .o (1,628) (15,149) (11,827)
Repayment of capital leases ............ S (267) (254) (233)
Net proceeds from issuance of commOn StOCk . . .« .o vuet et 86 —_ —
Net proceeds from exercise of stock options . ....... .. ... . i 1,187 — —
Net proceeds from initial public offering of common stock .......... ... ... 39,669 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . .......... ... ... ... ... ... ... 473 26,963 (12,060)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ... o i 16,067 47,004 4,438
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD ............covnnnnn. 73,279 26,275 21,837
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD . ..., $ 89,346 $73279 % 26,275
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
TACEIEST PAI . ¢ vttt e e e $ 4,247 $ 5025 $ 5,528
Income taxes paid:
DIOMIESTIC .« o v e ettt e et e e e e e e 474 195 133
BOTEI g .« oot 5,252 3,930 3,629

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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HYDRIL COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations — Hydril Company (the “Company”) operates principally in the oilfield equipment
industry on a worldwide basis. Operations involve engineering, manufacturing and marketing high performance
specialty equipment for use in the exploration and production of oil and gas. The Company’s customer base
consists primarily of steel pipe distributors, major oil companies, independent oil and gas producers and drilling
contractors. The Company operates in two business segments — Premium Connection and Pressure Control (see
Note 13 for further information).

Principles of Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Hydril Company
and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates— The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition — Revenues for all products and services are recognized at the time such products are
delivered or services are performed, except as described below.

Revenues from long-term contracts, which are generally contracts from six to eighteen months and an
estimated contract price in excess of $1,000,000 are recognized using the percentage-of-completion method
measured by the percentage of cost incurred to estimated final cost. Contract costs include all direct material,
labor and subcontract costs and those indirect costs related to contract performance. If a long-term contract was
anticipated to have an estimated loss, such loss would be recognized in the period in which the loss becomes
apparent. It is at least reasonably possible that estimates of contract costs could be revised in the near term.
Revenues from long-term contracts were approximately 8%, 8% and 12% of total revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments including commercial paper
and time deposits having original maturities of three months or less.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts— The Company maincains an allowance for doubtful accounts based on its
best estimate of accounts receivable considered to be uncollectible. An analysis of the activity in the allowance for
doubtful accounts for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 is as follows:

2001 2000 1999
. (In thousands)
Beginning balance ................ ... o oL e $2,706 $3,710  $4,144
Additions charged to expense....... ... ... o o o 191 178 96
Accounts written off . .. ... L (1,125) (569) (117)
Other adjustments ............ . ... ... .. PR (440) (613) (413)
Ending balance........ ... ... .. o o $1,332 $2,706 $3,710

Other adjustments consist primarily of the collection of a customer’s account previously determined as
doubtful for collection, and general reserve adjustments reflecting current economic conditions.

Inventories— Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Inventory costs include material, labor
and production overhead. Cost is determined by the last in, first out (“LIFO”) method for substantially all
pressure control products (approximately 81% and 80% of total gross inventories at December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively) and by the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method for all other inventories. If the FIFO method
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HYDRIL COMPANY
NQOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
had been used to value all inventories, the cost would have been $12,083,000, $11,895,000 and $12,136,000
higher at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

The Company periodically reviews its inventory for excess or obsolete items and provides a reserve for the
difference in the carrying value of excess or obsolete items and their estimated net realizable value. An analysis of
the excess and obsolete inventory reserve for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 is as follows:

2001 2000 1999
(in thousands)
Beginning balance ............. .. ... L S $6511 $6,386 $ 8,531
Provision for excess and obsolete inventory ................... 3,815 1,189 2,423
Inventory disposed of during the year. . ...................... ©(2,159)  (1,064) (4,568)
Ending balance ........ ... .. o i i $8,167 $6,511 $6,386

Property — Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost. Expenditures for renewals, replacements and
improvements are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operating expenses as incurred. Deprecia-
tion of property, including that under capital leases, is based on the straight-line method. Rates are based upon the
estimated useful lives of the various classes of property, generally as follows:

Buildings and improvements ........... e 20-45 years
Machinery and equipment........ ... ... .. oo 3-12 years

Upon retirement or other disposal of fixed assets, the costs and related accumulated depreciation are removed
from the respective accounts and any gains or losses are included in the results of operations.

Included in other assets within the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2001 and 2000 are
$2,671,000 and $2,701,000 respectively, of real estate holdings. These holdings are composed of land and
buildings in the United States not currently used in operations, which may be sold if prices acceptable to the
Company can be obtained. Such holdings are reported at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less
estimated costs to sell.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets— The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment when circum-
stances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The determination of recoverability
is made based upon the estimated undiscounted future cash flows of the related asset. If the sum of the future
undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of the asset.

Research and Development Costs— The Company engages in research and development activities to develop
new products and to significantly improve existing products. Some of these activities are conducted with other
industry participants or government organizations who reimburse the Company for costs incurred by the
Company on their behalf. The Company expenses as incurred all research and development costs that are not
reimbursable by other parties. Research and development expenses, net of reimbursement, were $2,115,000,
$1,430,000 and $1,107,000, for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation — The Company accounts for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value
method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employ-
ees.” Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options is measured as the excess, if any, of the quoted market
price of the Company’s common stock at the date of grant over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the
common stock. ‘

Environmental Liabilities— The costs to remediate and monitor environmental matters are accrued when
such liabilities are considered probable and a reasonable estimate of such costs is determinable.
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HYDRIL COMPANY
NOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Income Taxes— The Company follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes under which
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of (i) temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements and
(i) operating loss and tax credit carryforwards for tax purposes. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation
allowance when, based upon management’s estimates, it is more likely than not that a portion of the deferred tax
assets will not be realized in a future period. United States deferred income taxes have been provided on
unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries. ’

Foreign Currencies Translation — The Company’s foreign operations are closely integrated with and are
extensions of the Company’s U.S. operations. Accordingly, the U.S. dollar is the functional currency for all of the
Company’s foreign operations. Inventory, property, plant and equipment, cost of sales and depreciation are
remeasured from the local currency to U.S. dollars at historical exchange rates. Monetary assets and liabilities are
remeasured at current exchange rates on the balance sheet date. Income and expense accounts, other than cost of
sales and depreciation, are remeasured at weighted average exchange rates during the year. Gains and losses
resulting from those remeasurements are included in the statements of operations.

Concentration of Credit and Customer Risk — The Company sells its products to steel pipe distributors, major
and independent domestic and international oil and gas companies and national oil companies, as well as
domestic and international drilling contractors and rental companies. See Note 13 for further information on
major customers. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and provides allowance for
probable credit losses where necessary.

Reclassifications — Certain prior year amounts within the consolidated financial statements have been reclas-
sified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

2. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 consisted of the
following:
December 31,
2001 2000
(In thousands)

Accrued liabilities:

Accrued payroll, bonus and severance ........ ... L o i $ 3.857 $ 3,499
Employee benefits. . ... 3,237 4,136
Product Warranties . ... oo vttt e e 3,104 1,474
- Taxes (property, sales, payroll, other) .......... ... ... .. ... L 3,069 2,861
Reserve for losses on projects (Note 3) . ............................ 120 3,263
Other ..o 3,879 2,740
Total .. $17,266  $17,973

Other long-term liabilities:
Post retirement health and life benefics ... ... ... . .. $ 9,648  $10,452
Pension plan benefies . ... ... 5,723 4,980
Other .o 204 117
Total .o e $15,575 $15,549
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NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

3. LONG-TERM CONTRACTS

The components of long-term contracts as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 consist of the following:
December 31,
2001 2000
(In thousands)

Costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts ................ $ 8993 $21,044
Less: billings to date ........ . .. .. (21,634) (23,880)
Excess of costs and estimated earnings over billings ............. ... ... $(12,641) $ (2,836)

Included in the accompanying balance sheets under the following captions:
Contract costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings .......... .. 8 — % 1,227
Billings in excess of contract costs and estimated earnings . ............ (12,641) (4,063)
Total. ..o e $(12,641) $ (2,836)

Beginning in 1996 and through 1999, the Company entered into 17 fixed-price contracts to provide pressure
control equipment and subsea control systems for pressure control equipment. All of the subsea control systems
and all of the pressure control equipment for these contracts were shipped prior to December 31, 2000.

Losses incurred on these projects, including late delivery penalties, were approximately. $1,500,000 and
$3,700,000 for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. There were no such losses recorded in
2001. Provisions for estimated losses were determined by comparing total sales price to costs incurred plus
estimated costs to complete the contract. Provision for estimated losses have been made, to the extent applicable,
for all projects not completed as of December 31, 2001. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had
accrued a reserve for project losses of $120,000 and $3,263,000, respectively.

The Company incurred late delivery penalties when projects were not delivered timely because of evolving
engineering design, individual project customization and limired manufacturing capacity. As of December 31,
2000, the Company had accrued as part of the reserve for project losses $1,756,000 for late delivery penalties. As
of December 31, 2001, all such penalties had been settled and therefore, no portion of the accrual for project
losses as of that date related to late delivery penalties.

As of December 31, 2000, the Company had $1,525,000 of receivables representing amounts billed to, but
unpaid, by customers pending completion of the projects. Receivables as of December 31, 2001 did not include
any such billed but unpaid amounts.
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4. LONG-TERM DEBT

The Company’s borrowings as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 were as follows:

December 31,

2001 2000
(In thousands)

SENIOT TIOTES + o v vttt e e e et e e e e e $60,000  $60,000
Revolving lines of credit:

U S — —

Foreign ... .. . — —

IBM note flnancing ....... ...ttt 234 767

Total . oo 60,234 60,767

Less CULTENT POITIOM + . vttt ettt ettt et e e e e e (234) (534)

Total long-term debe ... .. o o $60,000  $60,233

Senior notes— On June 26, 1998, the Company issued $60,000,000 in senior notes due June 30, 2003. The
notes bear interest at a rate of 6.85% payable quarterly. The senior notes may not be prepaid prior to maturity
unless the Company pays the noteholders a make-whole premium based on prevailing market interest rates, which
as of December 31, 2001 would require a premium payment of $3,186,000.

Revolving lines of credit— As of December 31, 2001, the Company has available an unsecured U.S. revolving
line of credit of $25,000,000. The credit line will mature March 31, 2003. The Company may, at its election,
borrow at either a prime or LIBOR based interest rate. Interest rates under the line fluctuate depending on the
Company’s leverage ratio and are LIBOR plus a spread ranging from 125 to 200 basis points or prime. At
December 31, 2001, there were no outstanding borrowings under this credit facility.

Additionally, the Company has two foreign revolving lines of credit for use in its international operations.
The first of these is an unsecured facility established in September 2001, totaling $10,000,000. This committed
credit line matures March 31, 2003. The Company may; at its election, borrow at either a prime or LIBOR based
interest rate. Interest rates under the credit line fluctuate depending on the Company’s leverage ratio and are
prime plus a spread ranging from zero to 25 basis points or LIBOR plus a spread ranging from 125 to 225 basis
points. At December 31, 2001, there were no outstanding borrowings under this facility.

The second foreign revolving line of credit is an unsecured facility of $4,000,000, of which none was
outstanding at December 31, 2001. This uncommitted facility can be terminated at the bank’s discretion. The
interest rate on this line is a fixed rate based on current Eurodollar market conditions at the time of the draw,
which at December 31, 2001 would have been 4.5%. At December 31, 2001, there were no outstanding
borrowings under this facility.

Covenants — The U.S. revolving line of credit requires the Company to comply with certain covenants and
financial tests. The financial covenants under the line of credit consist of a requirement to maintain minimum
levels of tangible net worth, to not exceed levels of debt specified in the agreement, to comply with a fixed
coverage test and to not exceed a maximum leverage ratio. The long-term note agreement for the senior notes has
one financial event of default covenant, which is a minimum tangible net worth test. Additional financial tests
under the long-term note agreement, if not passed, restrict the Company’s ability to incur additional indebtedness
or make acquisitions, investments and restricted payments, such as pay dividends and repurchase capital stock. At
December 31, 2001, the Company was in compliance these covenants.
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Collateral— On September 25, 2001, the Company amended its domestic revolving line of credit. The
amendment, among other things, changed the credit facility from secured to unsecured. Concurrently, the senior
notes became unsecured pursuant to the terms of the collateral agency and intercreditor agreement with the
noteholders and the lenders under the domestic credir facility. Prior to this amendment, the senior notes and the
U.S. revolving line of credit were secured, on a pari passu basis, by accounts receivable, inventory, equipment,
intellectual property, certain real property, 100% of the stock of domestic subsidiaries, and 65% of the stock of
foreign subsidiaries.

IBM note financing— The Company is financing certain equipment and completed consulting agreements
with IBM over a five-year period beginning June 1997. The notes bear interest at 4.90% — 7.61% per annum.

Debt maturities— The estimated remaining principal payments on the outstanding debt, exclusive of capital
lease obligations, as of December 31, 2001 are as follows: (in thousands)

Debt Maturities ‘ _Total
2002 o $ 234
2003 L 60,000

Total $60,234

5. INCOME TAXES

The geographical sources of income (loss) before income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999 were as follows: :

2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
United States .. ...t $20,172  $11,149  $(14,345)
Foreign .. ... 19,547 13,059 3,379
Income (loss) before income taxes .. ....................... $39,719  $24,208  $(10,966)

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 consisted
of the following:

2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
United States: '
CUITEOT .« v e et e e e e e e $2732 $ 66 $§ —
Deferred . ..ot 4,810 3,286 (7,421)
" Foreign: . '
CUTENT .« v e e e e e e e e e 6,168 5,315 3,914
Deferred ... ..o 390 (73) (222)
Total . oo $14,100  $8,594  $(3,729)
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The consolidated effective income tax rates (as a percentage of income before income taxes) for the years

ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 varies from the United States statutory income tax rate for the reasons
set forth below:

2001 2000 1999
SEALULOLY FACE . . oottt et e e e 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Nondeductible expenses . ............cciiiiiiiiiiiii i 0.2% 0.3% (0.7)%
Other . . 0.3% 0.2% (0.3)%
Effective Rate. . . ..o 35.5% 35.5% 34.0%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the amounts of assets and
liabilities for accounting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the
Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 were as follows:

2001 2000
(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Inventory capitalization COSE . ..\ vvv et ittt ettt e $ 3,290 §$ 2428
Accrued expenses and other items not deductible for tax purposes ................ 10,071 10,719
Net operating loss carryforward . .. ... ... .. ... o 220 4,730
Alternative minimum tax and foreign tax credits ......... ... ... . ...l 8,432 6,232
Other « o e e 1,158 1,067

Total deferred tax assets.............. [ 23,171 25,176
Deferred tax liabilicies:
Property, plant and equipment ....... .. .. L oo (3,872) (3,250)
Unrepatriated foreign earnings. ... ..........ouuuiiiiiiiiiii .. (10,053) (7,479)
Total deferred tax Hability ... (13,925)  (10,729)
Net deferred tax asset ................. R $ 9,246  $ 14,447

At December 31, 2001, the Company had approximately $600,000 of net operating losses available to offset
future taxable income through the year 2019. In addition, the Company has approximately $700,000 of federal
alternative minimum tax credits which are available to reduce future federal income tax payable, if any, over an
indefinite period (although not below the tentative minimum tax otherwise due in any year), and approximately

$7,700,000 of foreign tax credits which are available to reduce future U.S. income taxes payable, if any, through
the year 2005.

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Post Retirement Benefits— The Company has a defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all of its
U.S. employees. Benefits are based on the employees’ years of service and compensation. Plan assets consist
primarily of investments in equities and money market funds. Effective December 31, 2001, this plan was frozen.
No additional benefit will be accrued under this plan. Beginning January 1, 2002, the Company has a new
retirement contribution plan to replace its previous plan covering substantially all of its U.S. employees. The new
retirement contribution plan is discussed below under Defined Contribution Plan.

Additionally, the Company provides certain medical, life insurance and/or dental benefits for eligible
employees, hired before July 1, 1997, who have retired under one of the Company’s pension plans. Effective
December 31, 1999, the Company changed eligibility provisions for this plan, significantly reducing the number
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of participants. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Post retirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions,” this change to the plan resulted in the recognition of $2,225,000 of net curtailment gains
in 1999. Also effective December 31, 1999, the Company changed the plan to increase premiums and reduce
lifetime cap provisions. These negative plan amendments resulted in an additional $4,579,000 of negative prior
service cost that will be amortized as a reduction of expense over the remaining life expectancy of fully eligible
participants. ‘ ‘

The benefit obligation, value of plan assets, and funded status component costs of the plans are as follows:

Post Retirement

Pension Benefits Health and Life Benefits
2001 2000 2001 2000
(In thousands)

Benefit obligation at beginning of year .. ................. $23,308 $20,878 $ 6,555 $ 6,682
SEIVICE COST o vt vttt e et e e e e e e e e e 1,343 1,245 55 50
INTErest COSt . v v e e e e 1,766 1,533 463 489
Participant contributions .. ........ . ... .. o — — 55 51
Curtailment (gain)/loss . ....................... R (5,795) — — —
Benefits paid ......... ... (484) (413) - (610) (862)
Actuarial (gain)/loss . ........... o 4,321 65 191 145

Benefic obligation at end of year ................ $24,459 $23308 $ 6,709 $ 6,555

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year .............. $15,903  $12,759 — —
Actual return on plan assets. . ........ ... ..o oL 595 943 — / —
Employer contributions ............ ... ... L 2,732 2,644 $ 555 § 810
Participant contributions .. ....... ... ... ... .. .. — — 55 51
Benefits paid .. ... ... .. (484) (413) (610) . (861)
Administrative expenses ... ........ ... o R (16) (30) — —

Fair value of plan assets at end of year ........... $18,730 $15,903 $ 0 $ 0
Reconciliation of plan funded status ‘ '
Funded status. .. ... oo $(5,729) $(7,405) $ (6,709) $ (6,555)
Unrecognized actuarial (gain)/loss ..................... 44 116 164 (233)
Unrecognized transition obligation ................. ... — 405 — —
Unamortized prior service cost . .............c.coovoe... — (36) (3,603) (4,091)

Net amount recognized at year-end.............. $(5,685) $(6,920) $(10,148) $(10,879)
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Post Retirement
Pension Benefits Health and Life Benefits

2001 - 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999

(In thousands)

Components of net periodic benefit cost

SEIVICE COST . v v v o e e et e $1,342 $1,245 $1521 $ 55 $ 50 $ 372

Interest cost .. .......uiiiiiin.. 1,766 1,533 1,489 463 489 804
Expected return on plan assets . .......... (1,588) (1,057) (1,251) — _ —
Amortization of prior service cost ........ 9) (9) (9)  (488) (488) —
Amortization of transition obligation . ... .. 193 193 193 — — —
Recognized actuarial gain ............... — — — — — —_—

Net periodic cost . .............. $1,704 $1,905 $1,943 % 30 $ 51 $1,176

Additional loss (gain) recognized due to:

Curtaillment. ... ... ... . $ 185 § — & — & — $ —  $(2,225

The assumed discount rate and salary increase rate used in determining the benefit obligation were 6.75%
and 4.50%, respectively, at December 31, 2001. Such rates used at December 31, 2000 and 1999 were 7.50%
and 4.50% and 7.75% and 4.50%, respectively. The expected long-term rate of return on pension plan assets at
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was 9%, 9% and 8%, respectively.

A 10% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of pre-age 65 covered health care benefits was assumed
for 2002 in determiningthe benefit obligation for the post retirement health and life plan. This rate is assumed to
decrease gradually to 5% for 2007 and remain at that level thereafter. A 12% annual rate of increase in the per
~ capita cost of post-age 65 covered health care benefits was assumed for 2002 in determining the benefit obligation
for the post retirement health and life plan. This rate is assumed to decrease gradually to 5% for 2009 and remain
at that level thereafter.

The assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the post
retirement health and life plan. A one percent change in the assumed health care cost trend rates would have the
following effects:

One Percent

Increase Decrease

(In thousands)
Effect on total of service and interest cost components for 2001............. $ 11 $ (10)
Effect on December 31, 2001 benefit obligation ......................... 145 (142)

Defined Contribution Plans — The Company has an employee savings plan under which U.S. employees can
invest up to 12% of their earnings matched by an amount from the Company equal to one-half of the first 6% of
the employees’ contributions. The Company’s contributions were $859,000, $793,000 and $898,000 in 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company has a new defined contribution retirement plan, in which the
Company will make monthly contributions to a separate retirement contribution account for each employee as an
addition to the savings plan discussed above. The contributions are a percentage of compensation ranging from
2%-7% based on age.

Nongualified Deferred Compensation Arrangement — Effective April 1, 2001, the Company implemented the
Hydril Company Restoration Plan, a nonqualified, unfunded, deferred compensation arrangement for a select
group of management or highly compensated employees. Under the terms of the Plan, participants can defer up to
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15% of their regular base pay and 100% of bonuses that would otherwise be paid in cash. Additionally, the Plan
allows participants to retain the benefits to which they would have been entitled under the Company’s savings
plan except for the federally mandated limits on these benefits or on the level of salary on which these benefits
may be calculated. The Company will make contributions to a rabbi trust to assist in meeting the liabilities of the
Plan. A rabbi trust sets aside assets to pay for benefits under a nonqualified plan, but those assets remain subject to
claims of Hydril’s general creditors in preference to the claims of plan participants and beneficiaries.

~ Other — Substantially all of the Company’s employees in foreign locations are covered by either governmen-
tal-sponsored or. Company-sponsored benefit plans. The aggregate liabilities and expenses of these foreign plans
are not material to the consolidated financial statements.

7. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock— The Company’s Restated. Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to
75,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $.50 per share, and 32,000,000 shares of class B common stock,
par value $.50 per share. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, 14,359,596 and 8,641,200 shares of common stock
were issued and outstanding, and 7,966,404 and 13,410,908 shares of class B common stock were issued and
outstanding, respectively.

The holders of class B common stock are entitled to ten votes per share and the holders of common stock are
entitled to one vote per share on all matters to be voted on by the Company’s stockholders generally, including
the election of directors. Holders of common stock have no conversion rights while holders of class B common
stock may convert each share of class B common stock into one share of common stock at any time. In addition,
shares of class B common stock automatically convert into the same number of shares of common stock if the
shares of class B common stock are transferred other than to a holder of class B common stock or a person related
to such a holder. All class B common stock will convert into common stock if the outstanding shares of class B
common stock represent less than 10% of the combined outstanding shares of class B common stock and
common stock.

Preferred Stock — The Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to
10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, there were no
shares of preferred stock issued or outstanding.

Charter Amendment and Change to Capital Stock — In September 2000, the Company amended its charter to
increase the authorized number of shares of common stock and preferred stock and create class B common stock.
As a result of the charter amendment, each share of common stock then outstanding was automatically converted
into one share of class B common stock. Concurrently, the Company also distributed five additional shares of
class B common stock for each outstanding share of class B common stock.

All share and per share amounts in the consolidated financial statements have been retroactively restated for
the increase in authorized shares of common stock and preferred stock and the creation of class B common stock,
the conversion of outstanding common stock into class B common stock and the five-for-one stock dividend of
class B common stock, which was-accounted for as a stock split.

Initial Public Offering— In October 2000, the Company completed an initial public offering in which
8,600,000 shares of common stock were sold at $17.00 per share. Of the 8,600,000 shares, 2,672,668 shares were
sold by the Company and 5,927,332 shares were sold by existing stockholders. The Company received net
proceeds from the offering of $39,669,000 after underwriting discounts and commissions and other related
expenses.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan — The Hydril Company Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Stock Purchase
Plan™), was implemented November 1, 2000, and 220,000 shares of common stock have been reserved for this
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plan. Under the Stock Purchase Plan, employees may purchase shares of the Company’s common stock ac the
lower of 85% of market value at the closing price on the first or last business day of each six-month period
beginning on each July 1 and January 1, except that the first offering period was an eight-month period
commencing on November 1, 2000 and ending on June 30, 2001. Purchases are limited to 10% of the employee’s
regular pay. As of December 31, 2001, 5,835 shares had been issued under this plan. In January 2002, an
additional 6,413 shares were issued for the offering period June 2001 through December 2001.

Registration Rights Agreement— In connection with the Company’s initial public offering, the Company
entered into a registration rights agreement with stockholders holding more than 5% of the Company’s common
stock prior to the initial public offering. The registration rights agreement provides such stockholders with, subject
to defined restrictions, certain demand, shelf and piggyback rights to require the Company to register the sale of
their common stock. The Company is required to pay all expenses incident to its performance or compliance with
the registration rights agreement except for underwriting commissions and discounts related to shares of common
stock sold by stockholders. The registration rights agreement terminates April 2006. Pursuant to this agreement,
in May 2001, 5,234,616 shares of common stock were sold to the public by certain existing stockholders at a price
of $26.50 per share pursuant to a registration statement filed by the Company. The selling stockholders held
class B common stock which was converted into common stock prior to being sold to the public. Hydril did not
receive any proceeds from this offering.

8. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE

Gain on Marketable Securities — In January 1998, the Company purchased two put option contracts from a
major financial institution for a total of $2,745,000 to sell 408,007 registered shares of Weatherford International,
Inc. (“WFI”) common stock for $44.53 per share.(the “put price”). The shares represented the Company’s
remaining interest in WFI, which was less than 1% of WEFI’s outstanding common stock. The WEFI shares were
received as consideration in exchange for shares received in a legal settlement in 1994. The put options were
purchased to provide protection against a decline in the market value of the WEFI shares.

Put options covering 200,000 WFI shares were exercised by the Company immediately prior to their
expiration in July 1998 as a result of which the Company received a cash settlement of approximately $981,000,
representing the amount by which the put price for those shares exceeded the market price at that time. Put
options covering the remaining 208,007 WFI shares were exercised by the Company immediately prior to their
expiration in January 1999; at which time the Company received a cash settlement of approximately $5,102,000
again representing the amount by which the put price for those shares exceeded the market price at the time of
exercise. Following both exercises, the Company retained the 408,007 shares of WFI common stock covered by
the put options. Subsequently, in the first quarter of 1999, the Company sold the 408,007 shares of WFI
common stock in ordinary brokerage transactions on the New York Stock Exchange and recognized a gain of
$253,000 from the sale.

Settlement Relating to 1998 Exercise of WFI Put Options — In May 2000, the Company settled a dispute with
the financial institution from which it purchased the put options in 1998 covering shares of WFI common stock.
As a result of this settlement, the Company received, after expenses, $3,576,000.

Sale of Non-Operational Real Estate — In September 2000, the Company recorded a $1,900,000 gain from

the sale of real estate not used in operations.

Expenses Incurred Pursuant to Registration Rights Agreement — Other expense for 2001 includes $570,000 in
“expenses incurred in facilitating the offering of common stock by certain stockholders of the Company in May
2001 (see Note 7).
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9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company has presented basic and diluted income (loss) per share (“EPS”) on the consolidated
statement of operations. Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income (loss) available to
common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Dilutive
EPS is based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during each period and the assumed exercise
of dilutive stock options less the number of treasury shares from the proceeds using the average market price for
the Company’s common stock for each of the periods presented. When potentially dilutive securities are anti-
dilutive, they are not included in dilutive EPS.

For 1999, the only potentially dilutive securities are 702,000 options outstanding under the Company’s
1999 Stock Option Plan. However, for the 12 months ended December 31, 1999, these securities were anti-
dilutive and therefore were not included in the EPS calculations. The following table summarizes the computation
of basic and diluted net income (loss) per share: k .

Weighted Net
Average Income
Net Income Shares Per Share

(In thousands except per share data)

For the year ended December 31, 1999

‘Basicnet loss. . ..o $(7,237) 19,379 $(0.37)
Effect of dilutive stock options. . ........... ... ... . ..., — — —
Diluted net 1oss .. ..ot $(7,237) 19,379 $(0.37)
For the year ended December 31, 2000 A

Basic net InCome . . ..ot $15,614 20,023 $0.78
Effect of dilutive stock options............... ... ... ... — 534 —
Diluted net loss ... oo $15,614 20,557 $0.76
For the year ended December 31, 2001 '

Basic net income. . .. .. $25,619 22,211 $1.15
Effect of dilutive stock options........ ... ... .. ... ..., — 364 —
Diluted net InCome. . .. .ot e $25,619 22,575 $1.13

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases— The Company’s lease commitments are principally for operating facilities and equipment. Leases
for certain data processing equipment are capitalized because these leases transfer ownership of the equipment to
the Company at the end of the lease term.
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Obligations for minimum payments under noncancelable capital and operating leases for the years ended
December 31 are as follows:

Total Operating Capital
(In thousands)

2002 $1,119  $1,067  $52

2003 . 756 756

2004 . e 615 615 —

2005 . 558 558 —

2006 . . 321 321 —

Greater than five years .. ... i — — =
Total minimum lease payments . ..................... $3,369  $3,317 $52

Less: amounts [EPIeSENting INTETEST . . v v v v vv e n e e —

Present value of net minimum capital lease payments ............

Less: current portion . .......... ...t

IT I
()

Long-term obligation . .. ............. ... ... . ...

Property and equipment at December 31, 2001 included equipment under capital leases with a net book
value of $373,000. Rental expense was $1,284,000, $1,306,000 and $952,000, for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Litigation — The Company is involved in legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. In the
opinion of management these matters are such that their outcome will not have a material adverse effect on the
financial position or results of operations of the Company.

The Company has been identified as one of many potentially responsible parties at a waste disposal site in
California. The Company’s agreed upon share of total site cleanup costs is approximately $303,000, which is
expected to be disbursed in 2002. This obligation has been adequately reserved for in the financial statements and
will not materially affect the Company’s results of operations or financial condition.

The Company has also been identified as a potentially responsible party at a waste disposal site near
Houston, Texas. Based on the number of other potentially responsible parties, the total estimated site cleanup
costs and its estimated share of such costs, the Company does not expect this matter to materially affect its results
of operation or financial condition.

11. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2001 and 2000 consisted of cash and cash
equivalents, short-term investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and debt. The carrying amounts of
these items (except for long-term debt) are a reasonable estimate of their fair values because of the short maturity
of such instruments or because their interest rates approximate comparable market rates available to the Company.

The fair value of long-term debt was determined by discounting cash flows based on contractual maturities at
interest rates expected to be available to the Company. The estimated fair value and carrying amount of long-term
debt at December 31, 2001 was $61,007,000 and $60,234,000, respectively. The estimated fair value and
carrying amount of long-term debt at December 31, 2000 was $61,428,000 and $60,767,000, respectively.

12. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Company’s 2000 Incentive Plan (the “2000 Plan”) allows for the granting to officers, employees, and
non-employee directors of stock based awards covering a maximum of 1,950,000 shares of common stock. During
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2001, 518,000 options were granted to officers and key employees for the purchase of common stock. OF these
options, 512,808 were granted at an exercise price of $19.275 and 5,192 at an exercise price of $21.202. During
2000, in connection with the Company’s initial public offering, the Company granted options for the purchase of
444,000 shares of common stock to officers and key employees. Of these options, 414,600 were granted at an
exercise price of $17 per share and 29,400 at an exercise price of $18.70 per share. All options granted to officers
and employees under the 2000 plan have a term of ten years and vest and become exercisable in cumulative annual
installments of one-fifth each beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant.

Under the 2000 Plan, each non-employee director is automatically granted a nonqualified stock option each
year following the annual meeting of stockholders on that number of shares of the Company’s common stock
such that the aggregate fair market value of such shares equals approximately $75,000. Accordingly, during 2001,
each of the Company’s nonemployee directors received a grant of non-qualified stock options to
purchase 2,494 shares of common stock for a total of 17,458 shares at an exercise price of $30.075 per share. In
addition, in connection with the Company’s initial public offering, pursuant to the 2000 Plan, each non-
employee director was granted a nonqualified option to purchase 4,412 shares of common stock, for an aggregate
of 26,472 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $17.00 per share. Options granted to non-employee
directors have a term of ten years, are fully vested upon the completion of one year of service as a non-employee
director, have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of
grant, and become exercisable in cumulative annual installments of one-third each, beginning on the first
anniversary of the date of grant.

The Company’s 1999 Stock Option Plan (the “Plan”) provides for the granting of options for the purchase
of the Company’s class B common stock to officers and key employees of the Company. Such options vest over a
four-year period and are exercisable for a ten-year period. An aggregate of 1,050,000 shares of class B common
stock has been reserved for grants of which 348,000 were available for future grants at December 31, 2001. The
Company does not intend to grant any further options under the Plan. In connection with the amendment of the
Company’s charter discussed in Note 7, each outstanding option for the purchase of a share of common stock was
converted into an option for the class B common stock.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option act1v1ty, and related information for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000, is presented below:

Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding December 31, 1999 ... ... .. ... ... 702,000 $ 4.37
Granted ... 470,472 17.11
Exercised . . .o oo — —
Forfeited . . . oo e — ‘ —_
Outstanding at December 31, 2000 .................. 1,172,472 9.48
Granted . ... .. SR e 535,458 19.65
Exercised . . ... .o i (268,057) 4.43
Forfeited . . .. .. o i, R —_ —_
Outstanding at December 31,2001 .................. 1,439,873 $14.20
Options exercisable at December 31, 2000 . .................... 175,500 $ 437
Options exercisable at December 31, 2001 ......... ... ... ..... 180,569 $11.17
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2001:

Weighted Average

Range of Weighted Average Weighted Exercise Price of
Exercise Remaining Average Exercisable Exercisable
Prices Shares Contractual Life Exercise Price Shares Shares

$ 4.32-$ 6.88 434743 7.04 $ 4.36 83,743 $ 4.32
14.62- 17.19 440,272 8.74 17.00 90,946 17.00
17.20- 19.76 542,209 9.79 19.24 5,880 18.70

19.77- 22.34 5,191 9.85 21.20 — —_
$27.50-$30.08 17,458 9.42 30.08 — —
1,439,873 8_6_3_ $14.20 180,569 $11.17

All amounts above have been adjusted for the effects of the stock dividend accounted for as a stock split
described in Note 7.

SFAS 123 encourages, but does not require, companies to record compensation cost for employee stock-
based compensation plans at fair value as determined by generally recognized option pricing models such as the
Black-Scholes model or the binomial model. Because of the inexact and subjective nature of deriving stock option
values using these methods, the Company has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123 and continues
to account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed in APB 25. Accordingly, no
compensation expense has been recognized for the Plan or the 2000 Plan. Had compensation costs for the
Company’s stock option plans been determined based on the fair value at the grant date consistent with provisions
of SFAS 123, the Company’s net income would have been decreased by $1,018,000 and $433,000 in 2001 and
2000, and the net loss would have been increased by $599,000 in 1999, respectively.

The pro forma fair value of options at the date of the grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes model and
the following assumptions:

2001 2000
Expected life (years) .. ... 6.25 6.28
Interest rate ... ...t 4.72%  5.08%
VOIREIELY « + + e e oo e e e e e e e 50.80%  48.67%
Dividend yield ... ... . 0 0% 0%
Weighted-average fair value per share at grantdate........................ $10.79  § 9.18

13. SEGMENT AND RELATED INFORMATION

In accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,”
the Company has identified the following reportable segments: Premium Connection and Pressure Control.

Hydril is engaged worldwide in engineering, manufacturing and marketing of premium connection and
pressure control products for oil and gas drilling and production. The Company sells its products to steel pipe
distributors, major and independent, domestic and international oil and gas companies and drilling contractors.
The Company’s products are primarily targeted for use in drilling environments where extreme pressure, tempera-
ture, corrosion and mechanical stress are encountered, as well as in environmentally sensitive drilling. These harsh
conditions are typical for deepwater, deep-formation and horizontal oil and gas wells.

The Company’s premium connection segment manufactures premium connections that are used in harsh
drilling environments. Hydril applies premium threaded connections to tubulars owned by its customers and
purchases pipe in certain international markets for threading and resale. Hydril manufactures premium threaded
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connections and provides services at facilities located in Houston, Texas; Westwego, Louisiana; Bakersfield,
California; Nisku, Alberta, Canada; Aberdeen, Scotland; Veracruz, Mexico; Batam, Indonesia; Port Harcourt and’
Woarri, Nigeria. :

~ The Company’s pressure control segment manufactures a broad range of pressure control equipment used in
oil and gas drilling, and well completion typically employed in harsh environments. The Company’s pressure
control products are primarily safety devices that control and contain fluid and gas pressure during drilling,
completion and maintenance in oil and gas wells. The Company also provides replacement parts, repair and field
services for its installed base of pressure control equipment. During the year, Hydril manufactured pressure
control products at two plant locations in Houston, Texas.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies. The Company evaluates performance based on operating income or loss.

Financial data for the Company’s business segments for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
is as follows: ‘
Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)

Revenues
Premium COonnection . ... ...ovu v e $138,887 $ 94,983 § 75,362
Pressure Control . ... 100,674 85,039 84,063
Total .. $239,561 $180,022 $159,425
Operating income (loss) ,
Premium COonnection ... ..o e e $ 31,476 $ 25,686 % 18,312
Pressure Control .............. R 21,168 8,542 (16,216)
Corporate Administration . ............oviiiiiiii ... (10,314) (12,810) (9,845)
Total .o $ 42330 $ 21,418 $ (7,749)
Depreciation and amortization :
Premium CONNeCtion ..« .vv vttt e e e e e $ 5799 $§ 5208 $ 4,049
Pressure Control .. ... . . - 1,778 1,759 1,959
Corporate Administration . .................... [ 1,630 1,612 1,843
Total ..o ... % 9207 $ 8579 $ 7,851
Capital expenditures
Premium CONNECtion . ... v v ve e e e e e $ 18,741 $ 10,510 § 7,690
Pressure Control .......... ... .. ... ..... PP 9,169 1,748 827
Corporaté AdmiInistration ... .coo vt 1,615 1,317 273
Total ... L $ 29,525 $ 13,575 $ 8,790
Total assets
Premium Connection ... .....vuit it e $103,583 $ 82,037 % 65,815
Pressure Control ...... ... ... . ... i 72,244 64,241 82,513
Corporate Administration . . . e 116,344 108,368 63,480
Total .o $292,171  $254,646  $211,808

47




HYDRIL COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
| Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)

Revenue
United States . . . v vt e e et e e $139,681  $119,373  $101,460
Canada and Mexico ... .ttt e e 36,180 28,112 23,357
Subtotal North America . ... v oo 175,861 147,485 124,817
Eastern hemisphere ....... ... ... o o i 63,700 32,537 34,608
Total oo e $239,561  $180,022  $159,425
Long-lived assets
United States . ..o oo P $ 82,945 $ 63,358 - $ 60,618
Canada and Mexico .. ..o ot 11,149 11,649 9,238
Subtotal North America . ... $ 94,094 $ 75,007 $ 69,856
Eastern hemisphere . ...... ... ... .. 10,258 8,796 8,944
Total .« e e $104,352 $ 83,803 $ 78,800

For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, no customer exceeded 10% of the Company’s consoli-
dated revenues. For the year ended December 31, 1999, revenues from one customer of the Company’s pressure
control segment represented 13% of the Company’s consolidated revenues.

14. SUPPLEMENTAL QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Year Ended December 31, 2001

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues . .. ..o $55,522 $60,110  $66,658  $57,271
Gross profit. ... oo 17,904 20,587 23,278 22,448
Operating income. . ........ ..o . 8,257 10,439 12,453 11,181
NEt ICOMIE . « o v vt et e et e 5,182 5,977(1) 7,569 6,891
Net income per share: '
Basic ..o e $ 023 $ 027 $ 034 $ 031
Diluted . .. ..o $ 023 $ 026 $ 033 $ 0.30

Year Ended December 31, 2000

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In thousands, except per share data)

REVENUES . .« v o v e e e e e e e e e e $44,759  $45,497  $44,643  $45,123

Gross profit. .. .oovivi i 11,919 13,225 14,238 16,838

Operating income (loss) . ....................... 3,883 4,788 5,720 7,027

Net loss. . oo 1,857 4,839(2) 4,510(3) 4,408
Net loss per share:

Basic oo $ 010 $ 025 $ 023 $ 0.20

Diluted ..o ovot e $ 010 % 025 §$ 023 § 0.20
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(1) Includes $570,000 in expenses incurred in facilitating the offering of common stock by certain of the
Company’s stockholders during the second quarter of 2001. :

(2) Includes a pre-tax gain of $3,576,000 for the settlement of a dispute with a financial institution from which
the Company purchased put options in 1998.

(3) Includes a pre-tax gain of $1,870,000 from the sale of real estate not used in operations.

15. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOQUNCEMENTS

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities”. SFAS 133 requires an entity to recognize all derivatives as an asset or
liability measured at its fair value. Depending on the intended use of the derivative, changes in its fair value will be
reported in the period of change as either a component of earnings or a component of other comprehensive
income. SFAS 133 is effective for all fiscal quarters of fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000. The Company
adopted SFAS 133 effective January 1, 2001. The adoption of this policy did not require any transition
adjustment and thus, did not materially affect the Company’s results of operations or financial condition. ‘

In July 2001, the FASB issued two new pronouncements: SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”, and
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. SFAS 141 prohibits the use of the pooling-of-interest
method for business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and also applies to all business combinations
accounted for by the purchase method that are completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS 142, effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2001, addresses financial accounting and reporting for acquired goodwill and other
intangible assets and supercedes APB Opinion No. 17, Intangible Assets. It addresses how intangible assets that are -
acquired individually or with a group of other assets (but not those acquired in a business combination) should be
accounted for in financial statements upon their acquisition. This statement also addresses how goodwill and
other intangible assets should be accounted for after they have been initially recognized in the financial statements.
The Company has evaluated the provisions of SFAS 141 and SFAS 142 and expects no impact on its financial
statements from the adoption of these standards.

In August and October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obliga-
tions” and SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. SFAS 143 requires
entities to record the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred
and a corresponding increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Subsequently, the asset
retirement costs should be allocated to expense using a systematic and rational method. SFAS 143 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. SFAS 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the
impairment of long-lived assets and for long-lived assets to be disposed of. It supersedes, with exceptions,
SFAS 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived assets and Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of”’, and
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company has evaluated the provisions of
SFAS 143 and SFAS 144 and expects no impact on its financial statements from the adoption of these standards.
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